Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Health and Wellbeing Select

Committee

Date: Wednesday, 18th July, 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath

Councillor Francine Haeberling
Councillor Geoff Ward
Councillor Bryan Organ
Councillor Tim Ball

Councillor Lin Patterson
Councillor Lizzie Gladwyn
Councillor Robin Moss

Mark Durnford
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG

Telephone: 01225 394458
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and
Midsomer Norton public libraries.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please
make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera
operator.

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days
before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the
scheme:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505



https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee - Wednesday, 18th July, 2018
at 10.00 am in the Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath

AGENDA

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out
under Note 6.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.
(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS,
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF
THIS MEETING

At the time of publication no notifications had been received.

MINUTES - 23RD MAY 2018 (Pages 7 - 18)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP UPDATE

The Select Committee will receive an update from the Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG) on current issues.

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

The Cabinet Member will update the Select Committee on any relevant issues. Select
Committee members may ask questions on the update provided.

PUBLIC HEALTH UPDATE

Select Committee members are asked to consider the information presented within the
report and note the key issues described.

HEALTHWATCH UPDATE

Select Committee members are asked to consider the information presented within the
report and note the key issues described.

COUNCIL / CCG INTEGRATION

The Select Committee will receive a presentation on this item from Jane Shayler and
Dr lan Orpen.

VIRGIN CARE COMMUNITY SERVICES - ONE YEAR ON

The Select Committee will receive a presentation on this item from Kirsty Matthews,
Virgin Care.

MATERNITY TRANSFORMATION UPDATE (Pages 19 - 96)

This paper updates members of the Committee about the work currently taking place
to improve maternity services across the B&NES, Wiltshire and Swindon as part of the
Sustainable Transformation Partnership (STP).

SELECT COMMITTEE WORKPLAN (Pages 97 - 100)
This report presents the latest workplan for the Select Committee. Any suggestions for

further items or amendments to the current programme will be logged and scheduled
in consultation with the Chair of the Select Committee and supporting officers.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Mark Durnford who can be contacted on
01225 394458.



Agenda Item 7
BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SELECT COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018

Present:- Councillors Francine Haeberling (Chair), Geoff Ward, Bryan Organ,
Cherry Beath (in place of Tim Ball), Lin Patterson, Lizzie Gladwyn and Robin Moss

Also in attendance: Jane Shayler (Director of Integrated Commissioning), Dr lan Orpen
(Clinical Chair, B&NES CCG) and Vincent Edwards (Commissioning Manager - Adult
Social Care)

Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Health and Wellbeing: Councillor Vic Pritchard

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
2 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Councillor Tim Ball had sent his apologies to the Select Committee, Councillor
Cherry Beath was present as his substitute for the duration of the meeting.

Apologies were also received from Dr Bruce Laurence, Director of Public Health and
Alex Francis, Team Manager - Healthwatch B&NES.

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.

5 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN
There was none.

6 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS,
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF
THIS MEETING
John Drake, UNISON Regional Organiser for B&NES had registered to make a

statement relating to agenda item 13 (Ethical Care Charter) and would speak directly
before that item was debated.

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 5



7 MINUTES - 28TH MARCH 2018

Councillor Robin Moss raised a point of clarification on behalf of Councillor Eleanor
Jackson. He said that with regard to minute number 82 that Councillor Jackson had
spoken about previous ‘Homecare studies’, not ‘Care Home’.

He also asked if there was any response regarding the query Councillor Jackson
raised regarding an empty ward within Paulton Hospital.

The Director of Integrated Commissioning replied that there are no empty wards
within the hospital. She added that for a period of time there may have been a
rehabilitation area in the RUH occupied space that was not in use.

With the one amendment in mind the Select Committee confirmed the minutes of the
previous meeting as a true record and they were duly signed by the Chair.

8 CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP UPDATE

Dr lan Orpen addressed the Select Committee. A copy of the update can be found
on their Minute Book and as an online appendix to these minutes, a summary of the
update is set out below.

A&E performance

Local system performance against the A&E waiting time target (95 per cent of
attendees to be seen within four hours) during April and May is set out below
including the comparative performance with the 2 other Acute Trusts in the
Sustainability &Transformation Partnership.

Trust April  April May May June June
Plan Actual Plan Actual Plan Actual

€)1, 8 88.2% 91.9% 87.0% 93.8% 87.0%
40 80.0% 80.7%  84.0% 93.2% 90.01%

Slgr s 91.09%  93.09% 93.99% 93.2% 95.78%

There has been a good improvement in performance during May which is thought to
be attributable to a strong system wide focus on patients who have been in hospital
more than 7 and 21 days.

CCG and Council integration plans

At meetings of the Cabinet and CCG Board in November 2017, BaNES CCG and
Bath and North East Somerset Council agreed their intention to pursue closer
integration, specifically to develop a single integrated commissioning function. New
shadow governance arrangements have been established which includes the

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 6



creation of a shadow Health & Care Board; the first meeting will take place on 6 June
2018.

Launch of Homeless Service

Homeless people in Bath and the surrounding area can now access vital healthcare
five days a week thanks to the expansion of a key community health service. From 1
May 2018, the Homeless Health Care Service began providing homeless people with
access to a local GP for an additional day each week.

The service is run each weekday morning from the Julian House hostel in Manvers
Street, Bath. The facility has a specially equipped consulting room which is kitted
out with all the essentials of a doctor’s surgery. It is staffed each day by either an
experienced nurse prescriber or male and female GPs from the newly-established
Heart of Bath Medical Partnership, a result of the merger of Oldfield Surgery and St
James’s Surgery.

Local increase in measles cases

Since January there has been an increase in the number of measles cases across
the South West with 11 people diagnosed in B&NES alone. Measles is an avoidable
disease and we are working with Public Health England to encourage everyone to
make sure they have had the MMR vaccine. As young people aged 16-25 are
particularly vulnerable to the illness, we are working with GP practices to identify
registered patients who fall into this category. They will then be contacted and invited
in to their practice for their two doses of MMR.

Breast Screening Programme

You will have seen the recent news when it was reported that about 450,000 women
had not been invited for their breast screening due to a problem with the IT. This
error went back to 2009 and resulted in women not being invited to their final breast
screening appointment.

There will be an independent review into the facts, chaired both by the Chair of the
Macmillan Cancer Trust and of the Chair of the Royal Marsden Hospital, and this will
be expected to report in six months.

NHS England will be sending a letter to GPs to help advise any patients that may be
concerned. Any patients who have been affected by this incident will receive a letter
by the end of May 2018. A telephone helpline has been set up and widely
advertised.

NHS 70th Birthday Events - 5 July 2018

A number of national events are taking place to celebrate the NHS’ 70th Birthday,
these include:-

i) The NHS Big 7Tea is a partnership between more than 80 NHS
charities with people across the country being asked to host a tea party
on the big day and raise a cuppa to thank NHS staff. More than 800

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 7



people have already registered to host tea parties. We would like to
encourage the whole nation to get involved, please register for your tea
party pack.

ii) Westminster Abbey Ceremony: On 5 July 2018 nominated members
across the NHS have been invited to attend a ceremony at
Westminster Abbey. Three members of staff from BaNES CCG will be
attending.

Councillor Geoff Ward congratulated the RUH on the recent good A&E figures, but
asked why the projection figures for June were lower than had been achieved in
May.

Dr lan Orpen replied that hospitals are obliged to show a trajectory of improvement
and that it was better to over achieve than to under achieve on their projected
targets.

Councillor Ward asked if patients can register as part of the Homeless Health Care
Service and why the service is only available for five days a week.

Dr lan Orpen replied that patients can register as it is effectively a separate practise.
He added that for other times of the week that the Urgent Treatment Centre is
available.

Councillor Lin Patterson asked if the Health & Care Board meetings would be held in
public.

Dr lan Orpen replied that they would be eventually, but not for the first six months.
He added that the Board would be co-chaired and in effect there will be two bodies
within one meeting. He said that they plan to meet every two months.

Councillor Robin Moss asked if he knew of the numbers involved locally with regard
to the Breast Screening Programme.

Dr lan Orpen replied that he did not know of the exact figures, but informed the
Select Committee that he had discussed the matter with Dr Bruce Laurence, Director
of Public Health. He said that personally in his role as a GP he had not been
contacted.

Councillor Moss stated that he felt that members of other political parties should be
involved in the Health & Care Board as well as members of the Cabinet.

Dr lan Orpen replied that he valued input from all political groups as historically there
had been good collaboration.

Councillor Vic Pritchard, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Health and Wellbeing said
that four members of the Cabinet would be present on the Board, but he would not
look to preclude other Councillors from contributing to the meeting.

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 8



Councillor Cherry Beath said that she welcomed the A&E figures and the Homeless
Service. She asked who will decide how patients are treated at the Urgent Care
Centre.

Dr Orpen replied that patients will be streamed by experienced nurse practitioners.

The Chair thanked Dr Orpen for the update on behalf of the Select Committee.

9 CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Councillor Vic Pritchard, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Health and Wellbeing
addressed the Select Committee. A copy of the update can be found on their Minute
Book and as an online appendix to these minutes, a summary of the update is set
out below.

Help shape the future of community mental health services in B&NES

The Council and CCG are reviewing the way community mental health services are
delivered locally and are inviting the public to help.

Both organisations are responsible for commissioning mental health services in Bath
and North East Somerset, and they are looking at the way things are currently done
to determine what is working well and identify any improvements needed.

The review of community mental health services launched last summer when over
60 face-to-face meetings and focus groups were held and more than 100 survey
responses received. People told the Council and CCG that community mental health
services must focus on preventing people from escalating into crisis, drive parity of
esteem (equal value) between medical and social interventions, and make sure that
services work together more effectively.

Six working groups, made up of staff from the Council and CCG, Virgin Care, service
providers, voluntary sector representatives and Community Champions — who
represent the public — are now working on the next stage of the review. This will
involve holding workshops in June 2018, to which people who use services, those
who deliver services and interested members of the public are invited.

For information about the review, please visit the CCG’s website, email
banes.yourvoice@nhs.net or call 01225 831 800 and ask for the Communications
and Engagement Team.

Virgin Care Community Services One-Year On

Between January and December 2015 the Council and Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCGQG) carried out a bold and ambitious review of community health and care
services for children, young people and adults.

The your care, your way community services review looked at the wide range of
services providing care and support in people’s homes and communities and the
experiences of the people using them.

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 9


http://www.bathandnortheastsomersetccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/project/mental-health-services-review
mailto:banes.yourvoice@nhs.net

The results of the consultation were used in the procurement process to test how the
bidders intended to deliver the priorities that matter to local people. Virgin Care
Services Ltd (VCSL) were confirmed as the successful bidder and awarded the
“Prime Provider” contract. Under this model, Virgin Care has overall responsibility
for the delivery and coordination of services but it can also sub-contract with
specialist, third sector providers and small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) to
ensure that existing knowledge and experience is not lost.

During 2017/18, Virgin Care was required to begin implementing their ambitious
transformation programme in order to improve service delivery and achieve
efficiencies to enable greater sustainability in future years.

There are a number of other transformation work streams developing at pace, for
example the reablement pathway review and the mental health pathway review. Both
programmes of work are looking to improve the offer for people in B&NES while
delivering efficiencies, and making the service sustainable for future years.

Overall, whilst Virgin is positively progressing some areas of transformational
change, including the implementation of the “Three Conversations” model, there are
areas of transformation, particularly Integrated Care Record and Care Coordination
where less progress has been made.

Councillor Robin Moss asked regarding the Mental Health Pathway Review whether
local plans are being informed by National Strategy and Policy, particularly in relation
to changes to the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) legal and policy
framework.

The Director for Integrated Commissioning replied that the Council does take
account of national work and this will include changes to the Mental Capacity
Act/DoLS provisions when published.

Councillor Moss asked what can the Council do if there are recurring problems
identified with the services provided through Virgin Care.

The Director for Integrated Commissioning replied that there are contractual levers
that can be used when needed.

Councillor Geoff Ward asked if the Cabinet Member would like to comment on the
work to establish better Air Quality within B&NES.

Councillor Pritchard said that he was aware that certain areas of Bath were being
monitored as well as Farrington Gurney and Temple Cloud. He added that the
Council were working on establishing a Clean Air Charging Zone that's capable of
reducing NO2 in the city by 2021 at the latest.

The Director for Integrated Commissioning suggested that the Select Committee
could seek comment on this work from the Director of Public Health in his next
update to them in July.

Councillor Cherry Beath asked how Virgin Care are monitored.

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 10



10

11

12

Councillor Pritchard replied that commissioners are constantly monitoring their work.
He added that the first 100 days passed without significant issue.

The Chair asked if the Select Committee could receive an update on their services
following on from the 100 day report they received in July 2017.

The Director for Integrated Commissioning confirmed that she would discuss this
further with Kirsty Matthews, Managing Director of Virgin Care’s Bath and North East
Somerset Community Health and Care Services so that it can be incorporated into
the Committee’s workplan.

Councillor Lin Patterson said that she challenged that the transition of services did
not pass without incident as the debacle relating to patient’s records was a concern
to many.

The Chair thanked Councillor Pritchard for his update on behalf of the Select
Committee.

PUBLIC HEALTH UPDATE

In his absence the Select Committee noted the update that had been provided by the
Director of Public Health. A copy of the update can be found on their Minute Book
and as an online appendix to these minutes.

HEALTHWATCH UPDATE

The Select Committee noted that on this occasion there was no update report from
Healthwatch.

COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICE REVIEW

The Commissioning Manager for Adult Social Care introduced this report to the
Select Committee. He explained that it provides an update on the current Community
Equipment services available to residents of Bath and North East Somerset. It also
outlines a project underway to review all community equipment services and develop
an up to date policy for the provision of community equipment. He stated that the
review will inform the re-procurement of the service under a new contract from April
2019.

He informed them that there is a pooled budget arrangement in place for community
equipment, totalling £675,730 in 2017-18, which is funded 70% by the Clinical
Commissioning Group and 30% by the Council.

He said that Community Equipment is a vital service which supports people to
maintain or increase their independence in a range of different ways. One of the key
aims of the Council and CCG is to support more people to remain at home and to do
this, consideration and review of the community equipment service is essential to

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018

Page 11



13

ensure it is fit for purpose and able to respond to increasing numbers of people living
at home, especially returning home from hospital without delay.

He stated that the Community Equipment Policy is due to be published in Summer
2018 and that the review and subsequent procurement of the community equipment
services is scheduled to complete in Spring 2019.

He explained that the equipment service currently cleans, disinfects and recycles
around 90% of the equipment that is out on loan and returned. He added that in
order to be decontaminated, items that have been returned must be stored in the
‘dirty’ area of the Store. Due to space constraints, it is not always possible to keep
the items waiting to be cleaned inside the Store building, so some items remain
outside the building while they wait to be cleaned and recycled. The size and
appropriateness of the current site is therefore also under review.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson recalled that she had informed the Select Committee of
the inadequacies of the store following receipt of information from four Westfield
residents who were told to put their unwanted Zimmer frames in a skip outside the
store. She added that she was not aware of the recent amnesty mentioned within the
report.

The Director of Integrated Commissioning replied that the Senior Commissioning
Manager for Better Care had addressed the previous issues raised by Councillor
Jackson and acknowledged the physical constraints of the current store and
difficulties in identifying an alternative, fit for purpose store, which is also affordable.

Councillor Robin Moss questioned the economics of recycling some specific items
and asked if there were cases where equipment requests were being denied.

The Commissioning Manager for Adult Social Care replied that the viability of certain
items was being assessed. He added that there was a slightly fragmented system in
place at the present time, but improvements to logistics have been recognized.

He added that the ‘Three Conversations’ model will allow for discussions to establish
why patients feel they need certain pieces of equipment.

The Select Committee RESOLVED to note the update on Community Equipment
provided.

ETHICAL CARE CHARTER

John Drake, UNISON Regional Organiser for the B&NES branch, which includes
Sirona Care & Health addressed the Select Committee. He said that his colleague
Fred Jerrome has sent a detailed briefing document to the Chair.

| am here to update you on a long running dispute between Sirona & low paid,
mainly women, workers in care homes and sheltered accommodation across the
Banes area.

The basics of this dispute is the requirement of Sirona to make savings and their
approach of achieving these savings will mean care workers having to make a

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018

Page 12



choice between taking a pay cut or spending more time at work for the same amount
of pay, not a choice anyone should have to make. It is little wonder that a recent
study has shown that nationally around 900 workers are leaving the care sector each
week. Our members in Sirona are openly talking about leaving a job they love and
seeking alternative employment in retail because it pays better.

We accept that Banes Council is not the direct employer in this case, however as the
commissioning authority you do have a responsibility to ensure not only the care of
the service users but also that staff delivering these services are treated fairly and
that includes pay

It is pleasing to note that the Council is seeking to earn the Ethical Care Chartermark
and that is a laudable aim, however this dispute is fundamentally about the ethics of
austerity and how this politically driven policy is impacting negatively on those
carrying out vital work in the care sector.

Following the Your Care Your Way consultation, Virgin was awarded the bulk of the
work that had been previously carried out by Sirona. As a consequence Sirona had
to radically adjust its finances. We can discuss the way Sirona did this, we can
discuss the rights and wrongs of things they should and shouldn’t have done but that
is not going to help the immediate situation.

UNISON is all too well aware of the financial plight of Banes and we are actively
working with officers to mitigate the impact of the 300 job losses across the council,
again due to ongoing austerity, however the monies required to resolve this dispute
are relatively small, between £150 & &180 k depending on who you talk to in Sirona.

| must make it clear our members do not want to strike, our members are not militant
members of a strike happy union, they are dedicated public sector care workers who
have faced 8 years of below inflation pay raises and are now facing another attack
on pay are saying enough is enough.

Which is why 95% voted to take strike action in a lawful ballot after Sirona came
forward with plans to dismiss and re- engage these staff which would force them on
to new contracts that will reduce their pay or make them work longer for the same

pay.

We are asking this scrutiny committee to work with us to identify additional funding to
ensure workers the council has a moral responsibility to support to take home a fair
days pay for a fair days work. The clock is ticking on the very real possibility of strike
action taking place unless a solution is found to this dispute. We have held a joint
meeting with ACAS but this has not resolved the situation. UNISON will meet with
Sirona SMT at any point but clearly their proposals must be withdrawn for any such
meeting to be productive.

The Director of Integrated Commissioning confirmed that the Council’s funding of
this service was not cut, but has not been significantly increased either. She said that
a £700,000 capital investment had been provided and, also, improved Better Care
Funding to support the service redesign was provided by the Council last year
(2017/18) and is being provided this year. She added that the Leader of the Council,

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 13



Councillor Tim Warren has responded directly to John Drake on the issues raised.
John Drake confirmed that he had received Councillor Warren’s response.

Councillor Vic Pritchard confirmed that no cuts have been made and that a
commitment has been given to Community Resource Centres. He said that matters
such as pay were for Sirona to consider internally.

Councillor Robin Moss asked about contingency arrangements to ensure service
continuity. He added that retention and recruitment in this work area is going to
prove difficult and that he was concerned on what the position will be in six months’
time.

The Director of Integrated Commissioning said that she could assure the Select
Committee and Unions that due diligence, including financial due diligence, is always
carried out when awarding a contract. She added that Commissioners have assured
themselves that Sirona has appropriate contingency plans in place. She also
reminded the Select Committee that the Market Position Statement considered at a
previous meeting includes a section on market failure and the Council’s work with
care providers to support a viable, sustainable and diverse market. She said that
obviously this was not a satisfactory position from any point of view.

Councillor Lin Patterson asked how likely the possibility of strike action was as she
was aware of the recent demonstration outside of The Guildhall.

John Drake replied that action may take place within the next couple of weeks and
that they were willing to have further meetings to avoid a strike.

The Commissioning Manager for Adult Social Care introduced the report to the
Select Committee. He informed them that the report sets out the potential for the
Council to become an Ethical Care Council that commissions its homecare services
in a way that is consistent with the Ethical Care Charter (ECC). In addition, it also
provides an update on transformation activity to establish new homecare and
reablement pathways and service models from April 2019, and in particular where
the ECC standards can be incorporated within that work.

He explained that the ECC’s 12 standards are spread across 3 stages:

e Stage 1 — Ensuring visits are client-focussed and are not rushed, pay for
travel time.

e Stage 2 - Consistency of carers, zero-hours contracts, reporting concerns,
funding for training and peer support.

e Stage 3 - Living wage requirement and occupational sick pay schemes

He said that many elements of the ECC are already in place within B&NES. For
example, the Council does not commission 15 minute visits and ensures that
commissioned providers pay for travel time between visits.

He stated there are national concerns about the high turnover of staff in care
provision and development of the social care workforce, which naturally impact on

10
Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 14



14

carer continuity. He said these are reflected to some extent in B&NES as well as
other parts of the South West. The Council is actively participating in a number of
initiatives in place to address these at local, sub-regional and regional level. The
Market Position Statement has a dedicated chapter identifying priorities and
opportunities in workforce development.

Councillor Lin Patterson asked how the work regarding the ECC marries up with the
issues raised by the UNISON statement.

The Commissioning Manager for Adult Social Care replied that as stated earlier the
Council recognises that acute pressure exists in this work area and reiterated that it
is not the direct provider. He said that a collaborative approach with care providers is
needed.

He explained that commissioners are hosting workshops in partnership with Virgin
Care and Strategic Partners to review current provision and establish new
commissioning intentions and procurement models for homecare. Workshops will
also involve key stakeholders, service user representatives and other local providers.

Councillor Robin Moss commented that he would be interested to see how this piece
of work progresses. He added that from recently attending the Resources Panel the
message was that a number of contracts were out of date and no longer fit for
purpose.

The Commissioning Manager for Adult Social Care replied that more contemporary
contracts are being put in place, including to address new General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR) requirements.

The Chair asked that the Select Committee be advised on developments regarding
employees of Sirona.

The Select Committee RESOLVED to:

i) Note and endorse the Ethical Care Charter standards to be specified in
the recommissioning of home care services.

ii) Note the update on the transformation work to establish new homecare
and reablement service models set out in the report.

SELECT COMMITTEE WORKPLAN

Councillor Robin Moss suggested that a progress report on the integration between
the Council and the CCG be given at a future meeting.

The Director of Integrated Commissioning said that a joint report could be produced
for the Select Committee.

Councillor Lin Patterson said she would like the Select Committee to receive
information on the subject of Eye Care.

11

Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018

Page 15



Councillor Eleanor Jackson commented that she would appreciate the Select
Committee to be given an overview of commissioned services within B&NES. She
added she would particularly like information regarding Diabetic Screening,
Glaucoma and Macular Degeneration.

The Director of Integrated Commissioning replied that most eye care services are
not commissioned by the CCG, they are commissioned by NHS England specialised
commissioning. She confirmed she would take the matter away and discuss with
CCG colleagues what is possible in meeting the Committee’s request for a report on
eye care.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson proposed that the Council compares its local findings
relating to pharmacies with the National Pharmaceutical Services report which is due
to be published soon.

The Chair thanked the Select Committee members for their comments.

The meeting ended at 12.20 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

12
Health and Wellbeing Select Committee- Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
Page 16



Agenda Item lm
Bath & North East

Somerset Council Bath and
North East Somerset

Clinical Commissioning Group

Maternity Transformation Plan update
Health and Wellbeing Select Committee
18t July 2018

Introduction

This paper updates members of the Committee about the work currently taking place to
improve maternity services across the B&NES, Wiltshire and Swindon as part of the
Sustainable Transformation Partnership (STP). This follows the national maternity review
and the publication of the national Better Births recommendations (the NHS Five Year
Forward View for Maternity services).

Better Births sets out the following recommendations to improve outcomes for women, their
babies and families:
e Safer Maternity Services (the national ambition is to reduce still births, neonatal and
maternal death by half by 2025).
¢ to have more personalised care which is family friendly, where women to have genuine
choice informed by unbiased information on where to give birth, and choose the
provider for their antenatal and postnatal care
¢ Improved continuity of care throughout pregnancy, birth and postnatally.
e Better postnatal and perinatal mental health care
¢ Improved multi-professional working between professional in maternity services.
e Working across geographical and agency boundaries to commission and provide
services where they needed

Previous updates have informed members about the new arrangements put in place to
improve maternity services across the Bath and North East Somerset, Wiltshire and
Swindon (BWS). All commissioners and providers from across the maternity pathway within
the STP were required to work together and to establish a Local Maternity System (LMS).
The LMS is led and hosted by Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and includes
service users, all providers of services across the maternity pathway and commissioners
from all three CCGs.

Each LMS is required to produce a Local Maternity Transformation Plan. This latest version
of this plan is attached. This was developed with the input and engagement of women and
their families, clinicians, maternity staff, a range of partners (Health visitors, Family Nurse
Partnership and Children’s Centres) and other stakeholders through a number of
workshops. Informal engagement took place with more than 2,000 women.

Page 17

“Maternity Transformation Plan update” Page 1 of 3



It sets out our LMS response to the national Better Birth Recommendations, as well locally
identified priorities to improve the experience of maternity services for women and their
families.

The Local Maternity Transformation Plan will improve the service to women and families by:

« Improving continuity of care

* Improving personalised care and choice with parity of access

+ Creating Community Hubs to provide ante and postnatal care close to home

« Delivery of seamless pathways across organisational and geographical
boundaries

Delivery of the Local Maternity Transformation plan

Improving personalised care and choice is a key piece of work currently underway.
Where and how maternity care is provided is being reviewed to see how parity of
access, choice and the experience of women can be improved. The table on slide 4 of
the presentation shows the current birth, antenatal and postnatal choices available to
women across the LMS. Work that had commenced at the RUH to review the delivery of
antenatal, birth and postnatal services has been aligned within this wider work. A key
challenge across the LMS and particularly for the RUH is the increase in the number of
births at the Obstetric unit and corresponding decline in the number of home births and
births in Freestanding Midwifery units over the last few years. This has resulted in the
significant underutilisation of some of the Freestanding Community Midwifery Units
despite actions taken to promote these, and a mismatch in workloads and staffing
levels. Across the LMS 85% of women chose to give birth in obstetric units. Slide 5 of
the presentation shows more detail about where women are deciding to give birth
across the LMS.

An Acute Maternity Services Steering group has been established to oversee the review
and redesign work and the public consultation required. It reports into the STP
Executive Board and also to three local CCG Boards. Care and delivery options are
currently being developed and finalised. Proposals for these changes will be subject to
the NHS assurance process and once this has been completed, they will be subject to a
formal public consultation process which will commence later in September 2018.

A Better Births recommendation is that each LMS establishes community hubs, where
maternity services, particularly antenatal and postnatal services are provided alongside
other family orientated health and social services provided by the voluntary and
statutory sector. The purpose of these would be to act as “one stop shops” to make it
easier for women to access the various elements of maternity care and any related
support they need, and to provide a fast and effective route if more specialist services
are needed. The model is not prescribed and locally work is underway to develop our
local vision for community hubs and improving community antenatal and postnatal
services, along with access to, and co-ordination with health visitors, children’s centres
family support and GPs locally.

As part of the Local maternity transformation plan, a DadPad app was launched across

B&NES, Wiltshire and Swindon in June and has been shared with a wide range of
stakeholders including maternity services, community health services including health

Page 18



visitors and school nurses, children’s centre services, social care teams and the RUH,
libraries, one stop shops and birth registrars. It is an easy-to-use up to date information
tool for dads-to-be and dads with new babies which provides bitesize top tips for new
dads to help them adjust to parenthood. The aim of the app is to enable new dads to
feel more confident about fatherhood and to play an active role in supporting health and
wellbeing outcomes of women, children and families across B&NES. A digital tool kit is
also available on the B&NES Family Information Online service.

e Improving continuity of care so that more women are attended at birth by a known
midwife. A pilot is planned in the autumn and initially will focus on more vulnerable
women and families.

Next Steps

e NHS assurance process including stage 2 review
e |If assurance is provided, formal consultation will commence at the end of
September and run for 12 weeks

e Detailed proposals will be brought to the Health and Wellbeing Select Committee
during the formal consultation period for a full discussion and feedback.

Appendix 1 Presentation
Appendix 2 Final Local Maternity Transformation Plan

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



12 9bed

redesign ‘
lbeing Select
2018

,,,,

B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire working together to enable well-being



Zc abed

Future Service

Our LMS vision is for all women to have a safe and positive
birth and maternity experience and to be prepared to
approach parenting with confidence.

Our future offer to our women and families will include:
e Continuity of care (20% by 2019)

* Improved personalised care and choice with parity of
access

* Creation of Clinical Maternity Hubs to provider ante and
postnatal care close to home

* Delivery of seamless pathways across organisational and
geographical boundaries



gz abed

BSW Local Maternity System

Maternity Transformation
workstreams
Continuity of carer
Antenatal and postnatal care
Safer care
Personalised care and choice
Perinatal Mental Health
Workforce transformation
Working across boundaries /
multi agency working




BSW LMS Maternity Services

Maternity care and birth provision
Organisation | antenatal and Obstetric Unit Home birth Freestanding Alongside
postnatal care Midwifery Unit | Midwifery Unit
Royal United Trowbridge
Hospitals Bath Chi h
ospitals ba . ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ Ippennam x
NHS Foundation Frome
Trust Paulton
Great Western
H itals NHS
HILELD v v v X v
;JU Foundation
% Trust
E Salisbury
H itals NHS
ospita S ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ x X
Foundation
Trust

® Choice currently not equitable across the LMS footprint

® Proposals for change will ensure choice options are met for
majority of population across the LMS footprint



Choice of place of birth

LMS Place of birth

0%

e 11,247 births across the LMS in 2017/18, of which
85% were in an obstetric unit

* 7% were in a Alongside Midwife Unit (GWH) and
6% in a Freestanding Midwife Unit (RUH)

* RUH has seen an increase in numbers of births at
the Obstetric Unit and a corresponding decline in
numbers of births in their FMUs / home birth

[
6%_ "

7%

85%

Gz abed

WOU ®AMU HFMU mHome EOther  place of birth percentages for RUH, comparing Freestanding Midwifery Units to the

Obstetric Unit from 2006/07 to 2017/18

20

RUH Maternity services has 80 - i —
used a number of strategies £ 70 T e
S 50
to promote and encourage 2 0
the Freestanding midwife g§30 | T
. 2 20 | —
units or home as a place of 10 i
. . fo) : : ’ ;
birth, yet despite these B
H%ST H =1 A\ -1 S < ~ o 3 el el < %,
initiatives, the number of ST T T TS TS

births continues to decline




9z abed

LMS Challenges

Lack of parity of provision Review current birth offer across the LMS

Future sustainability Capacity review based on population growth,
housing policy and demographics

Under-utilisation Review current provision of services across
the LMS

Workforce — Right staff, right Match workforce to demand

place, right time

Delivery of Better Birth agenda Broader LMS Transformation Plan



)z abed

Strong clinical leadership of
process

Dedicated LMS Midwife

Multi-disciplinary clinical
involvement and staff
engagement — obstetrician,
neonatologist, midwives,
MCAs and administrative staff



8z abed

DCId app

Top tips for new dads

Bath and NE Somerset @nhsbanesccg - Jul 2
The #DadPad app helps Dads with new babies get to grips with parenthood- from

nappies to sleepless nights: thedadpad.co.uk/app

NEWS: New app launched to help first-time
fathers in #Swindon @swindonccg
samfm.co.uk/swindon/news/I...

Dad A0

Top tips for

dads-to-be and dads
with new
babies




Our Local Maternity
Transformation Plan

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET, SWINDON AND
WILTSHIRE LOCAL MATERNITY SYSTEM (LMS)

May 2018

Page 29



Foreword

Our ambitious goal is that every woman in our region will have an equally positive experience
regardless of her personal circumstance, whether she is a lone parent, a young parent supported by
Family Nurse Partnership, a woman in a same sex relationship and any other pregnant woman in our
diverse communities.

Birth is a special experience for all, from the women and their babies, to their partners and families
through to the midwives and other birth attendants who have the privilege of being with women
during this miracle of new life. This is the birth of a family too, who need to be supported so that all
new parents have the confidence to take care of themselves and their new baby.

This letter reflects the care and support that we want every new mother to have. It is the unique
experience of one woman, her baby and her partner.

A letter to my baby

As | watch you sleep deeply and safely, | reflect on the love | have for you and the joy you have
brought me and your father.

You have had the best start in life and your dad and | have been fully supported to bring you into the
world safely. We feel confident that we will be the best parents you could wish for. We thank all our
carers for their support.

The health visitors continue to support us and give us information that is consistent with what we
learned from our team of midwives to ensure you are developing and thriving. In partnership with
my GP they also help me take care of my emotional wellbeing and knowing they are close at hand
helps me feel protected, safe and confident to care for you.

Health professionals have been skilled at supporting me to nurture and sustain you by bringing you
to the breast and continuing to breastfeed. Their partners in the community, such as children
centres and others, are also available for us if we need extra support on our journey as new parents
and to ensure we have a positive experience during this transition in our lives.

| chose your place of birth to be the safest and most relaxing place for us. During your birth,
midwives enabled me to feel empowered and to be guided by my own instinct. The encouragement
of family, friends and health professionals on the day gave your dad the confidence to be an amazing
birth partner. Your birth felt private, safe and secure and | felt cared for, listened to and treated
respectfully. | was able to follow my body’s cues and make informed decisions about our care in
labour and if | needed additional support, obstetricians and paediatricians were on hand.

There was much preparation leading up to your birth. | was confident in my decision about where to
birth following open and informed discussion with my midwife. There were also opportunities for
your dad to be involved in this. During my pregnancy with you | felt your movement, we talked
about it at my antenatal checks, and my team of midwives measured and prodded me to check you
were developing properly. | felt cared for, and as parents to be, contact with our midwifery team
and antenatal classes prepared us for your birth and parenthood. We also built a social network
along the way meeting other new parents.

Page 30



When your dad and | felt ready for new beginnings, we prepared ourselves for conception, ensuring
we were as healthy as possible and able to give you the best start in life.

Those nine months of us being together as one were an unforgettable journey as you developed
from an egg to an infant. | look forward to our life as a family and feel blessed that we have received
the best care possible.

Forever Yours

A New Mother

This is an exciting time for our maternity services and for women and families in B&NES, Wiltshire
and Swindon. Service user representatives have been centrally involved in developing our local
transformation plan, working alongside key stakeholders, sharing information, considering needs,
identifying gaps and shaping services that have women and their families at the centre.

We begin this transformation from a strong base with well-established relationships across the local
maternity system (LMS); good engagement from all parties; and a shared passion and commitment
from all stakeholders to change our services for the better. It is now time to put our well thought out
plans into action and drive forward our vision for “all women to have a safe and positive birth and
maternity experience and to be prepared to approach parenting with confidence.”

Trudi Webber (MSLC Vice Chair) on behalf of service users

Page 31



Contents

1. Introduction to the plan
2. Our Local Maternity system
2.1 Governance
2.2 The LMS and Accountable Care Organisations
3. Anunderstanding of the local population and its needs for maternity services
3.1 Geography and population
3.2 Deprivation
3.3 Number of live births
3.4 Early Booking
3.5 Flu Vaccination in pregnancy
3.6 Complex needs
3.7 Perinatal mental health
3.8 Low Birthweight babies
3.9 Caesarean Births
3.10 Breastfeeding
3.11 Multiple births
3.12 Infant mortality and stillbirth
3.13 Key challenges
4. The views of women
5. Better Births gap analysis
5.1 Personalised care and choice
5.2 Continuity of carer
5.3 Safer care
6. Financial case for change
6.1 LMS Maternity Contracts
6.2 Current spend
6.3 National LMS funding
7. Local Maternity System Vision for 2021
7.1 Implementing the vision
7.2 Trajectories and ambitions
7.3 Shaping our LMS future and timeframes
7.4 Co-production of the plan
7.5 MTP co-ordination and implementation
8. The role of service users and opportunities to provide feedback
9. Risks
10. Conclusions
Appendix 1 Current membership of the core LMS

Page 32

10
10
10
11
11
14
14
15
16
17
17
18
19
19
20
20
22
24
27
28
34
34
34
35
37
38
38
61
61
51
51
62
63
64



Introduction

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) maternity services have increasingly
been working together to improve services for women. Strong relationships have developed
between the three hospital Trusts and commissioners. We welcome the publication of “Better
Births, Improving outcomes of Maternity Services in England” as it provides a vision and framework
for us to progress. The national blueprint for maternity as described in the Five Year Forward View
has also been used to form this plan.

The providers and commissioners within BSW are active participants in the South West Maternity
Clinical Network, which benchmarks providers and facilitates quality improvement initiatives. We
are well placed to build on the success of this established network to transform our local maternity
services through clinical leadership.

We will proactively engage with women, fathers, families and communities to ensure safe births,
positive experiences and equity for all women. As organisational boundaries blur, staff and services
will be enabled to improve communication and continuity of care. We will work together with
partner agencies to develop seamless pathways that enable women and their families to access
services to further enhance their physical, emotional and mental health in pregnancy and support
the transition to parenthood ensuring the best possible start for babies.

We recognise that the commitment and ideas from staff provide the foundation of any
transformation and we will ensure that their feedback informs and shapes our plan as it develops.
Through embedding a continuous quality improvement approach, we will further develop the
existing safety culture that is evidenced by transparent reporting and sharing of learning from
serious incidents. We are committed to sharing and learning from each other when things go wrong
as well as when celebrating success.

The current national pilot projects underway will provide additional learning and guidance which we
are keen to adapt for our Local Maternity System as the evidence becomes available. This is an
exciting time for maternity services in England, and we are looking forward to not only implementing
our local plan but also being part of the country wide transformation that aims to make maternity
care amongst the best in the world.

1. Our Local Maternity System

A Local Maternity System (LMS) has been created across the Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon
and Wiltshire (BSW) Strategic Transformation Partnership (STP) footprint. The LMS is hosted by
Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and includes service users and all providers and
commissioners across the maternity pathway.

Our LMS has an extremely varied demographic structure and geography, which poses challenges to
the delivery of maternity services. It features large rural areas (particularly the mid-Wiltshire
Salisbury plain area) as well as urban centres. The main acute providers and larger towns are located
on the periphery of the STP footprint. The footprint incorporates a largely affluent population but
there are pockets of deprivation (6.4% of the population falls within the most deprived quintile).

The maps below detail birthing locations across the LMS.

Page 33



Map 1: Birthing locations as per 2013*

Wiltshire Council Bath & North East Birthing centres 2013
———————— Where everybody matters Somerset Council

Legend

Birthing_centres
Type
Q Consultant led Unit

m Midwifery and Consultancy led Hospital

< Midwifery led birthing unit

Chippenham

7 L X £
50.000 T AL
0= o 2N i 20 B s/

PN

*Note: Shepton Mallet now provides antenatal and postnatal care only.

Map 2: Better Births Initiatives Mapping — Live birth density:

O L i s & !
MIDWIVES ¢ ) : o 3 )

Better Births Initiative Mapping

N O Deprivation ©

¥, O Totsl Population Density ©
" 1 © Femsle 15-49 Density ()
5o, © Live i Density ©
? il O Nooverlay
Sl B2 Matemity Sites (Clustered) ©
‘7 4 Maternity Sites ©

e

ANCBGTRNE

B ReaTaN G 5,
g e o ‘4 4
Ve Vil
P V¥ 3

i

o y
Maternity Sites 1
@ Obstetric unit i
@ Obstetric and co-located f
@ _ midwiteled unit
4 @ Freestanding midwife-led unit
GP unit

&
5 i
Maternity Sites k

@ Obstetric unit

@ Opstetric and co-ocated
midwife-led unit

@ Freestanding midwife-led unit
GP unit I

@ Muttiple Sites

Ton NEW ALRESFORD

someRTON WINgANTON

.m.?jwm

Page 34



Table 1: Current maternity provision across the STP footprint:

Maternity care and birth provision

Organisation Antenatal and | Hospital based Home birth Standalone birth Co-located
postnatal care | consultant care centre birth centre
Royal United Trowbridge
Hospitals Bath N N N Chippenham
NHS Foundation Frome
Trust Paulton
Great Western
Hospitals NHS V \' \'i Vv
Foundation Trust
Salisbury
Hospitals NHS Vv Vv Vv
Foundation Trust
Salisbury are currently exploring the option of a co-located birthing unit linked to military
repatriation and associated demographic growth. It is our vision that all women will have access to
the full range of antenatal, postnatal and birth choice options across the LMS footprint. An acute
services redesign process has been commenced to review current choice and develop future
options, which will be subject to a full public consultation exercise. Further details of this process
feature in section 5.1. The maternity provision naturally affects the choices women make around
where they birth. Figure 1 below illustrates this variation across the LMS.
Figure 1: Place of Birth 15/16 by Clinical Commissioning Group
Place of Birth 15/16 by CCG
1004
95—
a0+
85+
80+
75
70
65—
60
55+
50—+
45—
40+
354
30
25+
20+
15
10
5_
o T
B&MNES Swindon Wiltshire
- Home birth episode rate (%) Free-standing midwife-led Consultant-led delivery unitlabour
Fr 15-16 B unit birth episcode rate B ward birth episode rate
Birth episode rate alongside (%) FY 15-16 (%) FY 15-16
midwife-led unit (%) FY 15-16
Source: SWSCN
7

Page 35




2.1 Governance

The Local Maternity System (LMS) consists of the Local Maternity System Programme Board and the
Maternal Health strategy and Liaison Committee. The LMS Programme Board is the overarching
group that monitors delivery of the maternity transformation agenda. The Maternal Health Strategy
and Liaison Committee (MSLC) is the multi-disciplinary arm of the LMS that influences the strategic
direction of the maternal care pathway across early year’s services. It is chaired by Public Health and
is attended by a range of stakeholders including service users (See Appendix 1 for core membership).
Ensuring providers and commissioners take account of the views and experiences of women and
their families who use maternity services is a key function of the group.

Maternity services are commissioned by B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire CCGS and quality and safety
assurance is provided through CCG Contract Quality Review meetings and processes. Maternity
measures are included in the CCG Internal Assurance Framework (IAF). This data is reviewed at the
LMS Programme Board. The LMS has strong links into the South West Clinical Network and the NHS
Improvement maternity and neonatal safety collaborative.

A dedicated Acute Maternity Services Steering Group has been created to support the service
reconfiguration aspects of our choice work stream. This is supported by finance, redesign and
communication and engagement working groups. Further detail can be found on page 21.

Fig 2: The LMS Governance framework

Governance Provider Boards
- Commissioner
STP Executive STP Sponsoring Boards —
Board € > Board Quality, Safety
> Assurance and
South West contract
Maternity - management
Clinical
Network STP Planned Care Programme Board
P A7 Local Authority
NHSE South T e ¢ HOSC
Regional . -
Maternity Board LMS Programme i z
“—| Board (Matemity &
South West Fomm
Neonatal <« A \ 2 ”
Network
< Safety Sub-
group Acute Matemity Services Steering Group
Maternal &
Neonatal Health
Collaborative — Matemal Health
Strategy & Liaison
Committee
NHSE Finance LHE Acute Maternity
Specialised $ Working Communication Services
Commissioning | € Group & Engagement Redesign
Neonatal / Matemity Working Group Group
Military Voices

Page 36




Our LMS Programme Board has the following membership which features in the table below:

SRO Chief Officer, Wiltshire CCG

Programme Director Director, Wiltshire CCG

Lead Commissioner

STP/ LMS lead midwife Head of Midwifery, SFT

STP / LMS lead public health representative Wiltshire Council

Senior representation ( Clinical and managerial ) | All Acute Provider

Project Midwife LMS

Lead Consultant RUH/SFT/GWH

Lead GP B&NES CCG

Quality lead Associate Director of Quality, Wiltshire CCG
Finance lead Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Wiltshire CCG
Comms and engagement lead RUH/ WCCG

CCG representation Swindon and B&NES

Maternity Voice Partnerships

The BSW LMS was successful in its bid for national monies to support the development of a local
Maternity Voices Partnership. It is envisaged that a local maternity voice partnership will be set up in
each provider area.

Plan for Maternity Voice Partnerships:

e To ensure that the voices of parents and service users along with staff continue to
inform the development of services both now and in the future.

e To ensure that the MVP work feeds directly into the BSW LMS to shape
commissioning of services.

e To ensure the service user voice is representative and includes the voice of women
who may need additional support such as those experiencing poor perinatal mental
health; young parents; those with a cultural difference and so on.

e To develop a sustainable model of service user engagement.

e To continue to review and co-create pathways to deliver the transformation agenda
and improved services and experiences in line with our Maternity Transformation
Plan vision.

e By end of April 18: agree plans and funding within LMS.

e By end of June 18: Recruitment of 6 members from groups in place.

e By end of July 18: Co-production of engagement strategy to go to LMS.

e By end of August 18: Set dates for Participatory Appraisal training. Start
communications with wider public.

e By end of October 18: Schedule of feedback agreed.

e By end of December 18: work streams in place and feedback obtained by
participatory appraisal methodology.

e End of February 19: feedback to the LMS to influence commissioning for 19/20.

Page 37




2.2 The LMS and Accountable Care Organisations

Accountable care is about bringing organisations in an defined area together to work towards a
common goal of helping the local population to live healthy, independent lives in which the right
health and social care is available when needed.

Providers and commissioners are being encouraged to join forces in a way that will enable woman
and their families to access, and staff to provide, care that is more integrated and free from the
organisational barriers that can often cause delay, confusion and frustration to many. The
organisations will include local councils, health care providers and social services.

Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships (STP) will need to co-ordinate with the Accountable
Care Organisations within their area to influence the agenda. Our plans have been presented and
signed off by the Executive BSW STP Board.

Co—design approach to identifying key streams and priorities including engagement events with staff
and service users will set priorities for areas of focus relevant to the needs of the population that the
Accountable Care Organisation covers.

The LMS will liaise closely with neighbouring Accountable Care Organisations and STPs to ensure
that priorities are shared and discussed to ensure the maternity agenda has influence and a voice.

3. An understanding of the local population and its needs for maternity
services

It has not been feasible within the time limitations to conduct a full maternal health needs
assessment across the LMS to inform this plan. Nevertheless, all available data has been reviewed
from a range of sources including Public Health England, the South West Clinical Network Maternity
Dashboard and RightCare, ONS data and some conclusions drawn.

3.1 Geography and population

Wiltshire, Swindon and B&NES span a large geographical area of 3,875 km” with a total population of
894,065 based on ONS 2016 mid-year estimates. Each area has distinctively different geographies
and demographics which are important to consider when transforming maternity services locally.

Wiltshire is a predominantly rural area covering an area of 3,485 km”and population density
averages 140 people per km?. It is largely white-British population with few people from ethnic
minorities. Access to maternity services varies considerably for women living in different parts of
Wiltshire.

Swindon is a large town covering an area of only 40 km”and the average population density is 5,447
people per km®. The 2011 Census showed population growth to be faster in Swindon than the
England average and the population from minority ethnic groups nearly doubled in ten years.
B&NES area contrasts greatly in terms of density and diversity of population. The City of Bath
accounts for approximately half the population and is 12 times more densely populated that the
remainder of North East Somerset. About 10% of the population are non-white-British. In terms of
deprivation B&NES is one of the least deprived authorities in the country, ranking 247 out of 326.

10
Page 38



The density of female population aged 15 to 49 is reflected in map 3 below. The LMS will undertake
further work to analyse the data that informs the map and consider the implications.

Map 3: Better Births Initiative Mapping — Female 15-49 Density

® Web Note made in Microsoft Edge
. = > N

] R R e B e

THE ROYAL : : i K
COLLEGE OF e < Rl 7 =1
MIDWIVES B ‘ . ]

Better Births Initiative Mapping

Oeprivation z .9
: S5~ -

Total Poputation Density (I ey e -f:m- Maternity Sites
Female 15-49 Density (D = . - . 3 @ Obstetric unit

Obstetric and co-located
®

Live Birth Density G
midwife-led unit

No overiay o { PEASEOOWN SAINT - B o
~ e @ Freestanding midwife-led unit

©
” - & ?F
[ Matemity Sttes (Clustered) (D | o - ~ GP unit
- v
Maternity Sites (L HEDC -
<] Boundaries (0 ),# Females aged
[ map Labels @ ‘5491F:efnkum’
r— =9, >14,51
of o 2 . 9,600-14,500
/ wAREIaS TR > 4,800-9,600
et G peaLLET ouLs 2,400-4,800
AAAAA ) 1,200-2,400
o~ 600-1,200
- PR 300-600
Tex <t

0-300

B

Produced by HealthGIS | Basemap. © OpenStreetMap © CartoDB

3.2 Deprivation

The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) ranks the 32,844 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in
England in terms of deprivation. LSOAs contain about 1,500 people. Wiltshire and B&NES are
considered to be generally prosperous areas; however, there are hidden pockets of deprivation as
illustrated in Map 4. Based on 2015 IMD data, 12 LSOAs in Wiltshire are within the 20% most
deprived LSOAs in England and five in B&NES. Deprivation is more evident in Swindon with 19 LSOAs
within the 20% most deprived nationally and eight of those are in the 10% most deprived.

11
Page 39



Map 4: Deprivation quintile map 2016

Cl ﬂ?kﬂﬁu m
CANNE

J utenuuunn
‘,n?.
-, N‘ELGNA%
FXLEORD O AV Bhe
nogﬁ OGE

Il Most deprived quintile in England [ Sustainabilty and Transformation Plan area
Wl Second most deprived T 2 Lower Tier Local Authority
N Average deprived ] Upper Tier Local Authority

Second least deprived [ Clinical Commissicning Group

Least deprived quintile in England
2 Crown Copynght and datatase nghts 2016, Ordnance Survey 100016569

3.3 Number of live births

Over the last 12 years there has been some variation in the overall number of births with a low of
just under 9,000 in 2004 to a high of over 10,300 in 2012. There has been little variation, however,
in the proportion of births in each of the three areas during the same period (Figure 3). Most
recently (2015), just over half the births were to women who lived in Wiltshire (53%), just under a
fifth were to women who lived in B&NES (18%), and just under a third were to women who lived in
Swindon (29%).Fig 3: Trend in Live Births

12000 -
. . = Wiltshire ®Swindon ™ BANES

Trend in Births

10000 -

8000 -

6000 -

4000 -

2000 -

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Source: ONS

12

Page 40



Although the number of births in each area has fallen slightly in recent years (Table 2), the latest
ONS projections forecast a gradual increase in the number of births for each area. Local policy-led
projections sometimes present a different picture (Figure 4). Swindon Borough Council’s policy-led
projection forecast a slightly bigger rise in Swindon births. In Wiltshire, a combination of plans to
increase housing, as set out in the Core Strategy, and the army rebasing programme are expected to
impact on birth numbers. An initial crude estimate suggests this could result in over 700 additional
births across Wiltshire. The LMS recognise the importance of closely monitoring population changes
to ensure the vision outlined in this MTP can be delivered effectively.

Table 2: Number of live births by local authority

Births

LMS

BANES | Swindon | Wiltshire | total
2012 1867 3073 5378 10318
2013 1854 2911 5133 8044
2014 1702 2923 5290 9915
2015 1808 2847 5050 9705
2016 1799 2848 5119 9766

Table source: ONS

Figure 4 illustrates the following birth projections for our footprint working from a baseline of 9,790
births

e 2018/19-10,127
e 2019/20-10,213
e 2020/21-10,238

Figure 4: Projected number of births

Live Births 2003-2016 and Projected Births 2015-2025
6000 -

5000 -

4000 -

w
o
=}
=

._—”/_\_/————\_\ -
B il e oy B L L g = o o E L SN S = o = el Il el el

PRPTT PR TI TR LTRSS E
J

Number of Births

1000 -

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

s Swrindon (actuaal live births) Swindon (policy-led projections) ss==B&NES (actual live births)
= = « « B&NES {policy-led projections) == == B&NES (ONS projections) Wiltshire (actual live births)
Wiltshire (ONS projections) Swindon (ONS projections) Wiltshire {policy led projections)

13
Page 41



Source: ONS, BANES, Wiltshire and Swindon Borough Councils

3.4 Early booking

It is recommended that women have access to maternity services for a full health needs assessment
ideally by 10 weeks of pregnancy (NICE, 2008). Late booking and late access to antenatal care is a
known risk factor. In B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire 290% of women book early in pregnancy in
comparison with the South West median is 92%.

3.5 Flu vaccination in pregnancy

The Public Health England influenza immunisation programme aims to offer protection to those who
are most at risk of serious illness or death should they develop influenza. Preventing flu in pregnancy
plays an important part in preventing maternal deaths (MBRRACE, 2014).

Table 3 provides data on flu vaccination uptake in pregnancy and shows a small increase across the
LMS in 2016/17 compared with 2015/16. Increasing the uptake flu vaccinations in pregnant women
is a priority for the LMS and flu clinics were introduced in some maternity services across the
footprint in 2016/17 as a pilot approach. All maternity services have repeated this model for the
2017/18 flu season. Improved access for pregnant woman at scheduled screening appointments
commenced in October 2017.

Table 3: Provisional cumulative uptake data for England for vaccinations in pregnancy given from 1
September 2016 to 31 January 2017

Flu vaccine in pregnancy uptake data

Local Authority 2016-17 2017-18 (provisional)
Bath and North East 45.7 53.9
Somerset

Swindon 47.1 51.2
Wiltshire 44.0 51.5
England 44.9 47.2

source: PHE - https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/vaccine-uptake#seasonal-flu-vaccine-uptake:-

data-collection-guidance. Published 9 January 2018

The national expectation is to deliver flu vaccinations to 75% of the pregnant population therefore

further work is required to achieve this.

Page 42

14


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/vaccine-uptake#seasonal-flu-vaccine-uptake:-data-collection-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/vaccine-uptake#seasonal-flu-vaccine-uptake:-data-collection-guidance

3.6 Complex needs

The following risk factors are known to increase a mother and baby’s vulnerability to adverse events:
booking late in pregnancy (early booking data is routinely collected to monitor this); maternal age
where risks are higher for younger women and older women; language barriers; smoking in
pregnancy; obesity in pregnancy; maternal mental health; multiple births. Data related to these risk
factors is presented in Table 4 with the exception of maternal mental health for which robust data is

not yet available.

Table 4 Women with complex needs by pregnancy by CCG area 2016/2017

Women with complex needsin pregnancy by CCG area

Swindon | B&NES | Wiltshire | South West

median
Early bookingin pregnancy (2016-17) (1) 92.2% 93.9% 94.5% 92.2%
Birth rate fromunder18 conceptions(2016-17) (1) 1.1% 0.6% 1.1% 1.1%
Birth rate in women aged 40 or over2016-17 (1) 2% 3.5% 3.4% 2.8%
% of babies born to mothersbornin the Middle 10.5% 3.2% 2.7% 3.3%
East and Asia (2014) (2)
Smoking at birth rate (2016-17) (1) 10.9% 6.9% 9.5% 11%
Obesity - BMI=30(2016-17) (1) 21.9% 16.5% 22.7% 21.8%
Multiple births per 1000 (2015) (2) 20.4% 14.5% 14.2% 14.9%

Source: (1) South West Clinical Network Matemity Daoshboard 2016-17 / (2) PHE Public Health profiles

Breastfeedinginitiation by CCG area (2014-15 to 2016/17)

1415 (1) 1516 (2) 1617 (2)
Swindon 84.1% 84.4% 79.2%
B&NES 76.3% 84.4% 85.9%
Wiltshire 80.1% 76.3% 74.4%*
South West 79% 77.4% (median) | 78.1% (median)
England 74.3% n/a n/a

Source: (1) DH statistical releases / (2) South West Clinical Network Matemity Dashboard / *affected by data

quality issues

Wiltshire has a higher percentage of women over 40 years birthing than in the other areas, but not

exceptionally high for the South West. The difference in ethnicity of mothers is very apparent in
Swindon with over 10% of babies born to mothers from the Middle East and Asia, reflecting the
greater ethnic diversity in Swindon. Smoking rates are highest in Swindon and lowest in B&NES

which may be related to levels of deprivation in the respective areas. Maternal obesity is lowest in
B&NES and similar to the South West median in both Wiltshire and Swindon. Swindon has a notably
higher rate of multiple births than B&NES and Wiltshire.

RightCare Maternity and Early Years data comparing Wiltshire, Swindon and B&NES each with their
10 most demographically similar CCGs also highlights smoking in pregnancy as an area of

15
Page 43



‘opportunity’ for improvement. Overweight and obesity rates in children aged 4-5 are also notably
high compared with demographically similar CCGs suggesting there is opportunity for improvement.
Babies born to obese mothers are at greater risk of becoming obese children which highlights the
importance of working to ensure women adopt healthy lifestyles before and during pregnancy and
to support and enable more women to breastfeed. The RightCare data for all CCGs within the LMS
was presented and discussed at the Maternity Forum on Thursday 25 May 2017 and the above
priorities identified.

The LMS Programme Board will be reviewing complexity data during quarter three 2018 to establish
a baseline which will be used to aid future planning and service requirements. This will include
complexity classification as used in Maternity Pathway Payments and complex social needs.

3.7 Perinatal mental health

Perinatal mental illness refers to a range of mental health problems of varying severity that can
affect women during pregnancy and in the year after birth including anxiety, depression and
postnatal psychotic disorders. Such problems affect up to 20% of women at some point during
pregnancy and for the first year after birth and can have a significant negative impact on the mother,
family and her developing child. Mental iliness is one of the leading causes of maternal death in the
UK and the number of new mothers committing suicide has not fallen over the past decade. Babies
born to mothers experiencing perinatal mental health illness are at increased risk of prematurity,
low birth weight, infant mortality, suboptimal growth, ilinesses, neurodevelopmental problems and
long-term cognitive outcomes.

Table 5 provides an estimate of perinatal mental illness across the LMS broken down by area and
shows the potentially large numbers of women to suffer from mild to moderate mental illness
during the perinatal period. Research indicates that there will also be a proportion of fathers who
develop mental health difficulties during this period.

Table 5: Perinatal Mental Health Projections taken from the Chi Mat tool

Perinatal Mental Health Projections NHS NHS NHS
Wiltshire B&NES Swindon

Estimated number of women with postpartum psychosis 10 5 10

(2013/14)

Estimated number of women with chronic SMI (2013/14) 10 5 10

Estimated number of women with severe depressive illness 140 55 90

(2013/14)

Estimated number of women with mild-moderate depressive 460 180 290

illness and anxiety (lower estimate) (2013/14)

Estimated number of women with mild-moderate depressive 685 270 435

illness and anxiety (upper estimate) (2013/14)

Estimated number of women with PTSD (2013/14) 140 55 90

Estimated number of women with adjustment disorders and 685 270 435

distress (lower estimate) (2013/14)

Estimated number of women with adjustment disorders and 1,370 540 865

distress (upper estimate) (2013/14)

16
Page 44



http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32986&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32986&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32987&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32988&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32988&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32989&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32989&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32990&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32990&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32991&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32992&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32992&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32993&norefer=true
http://atlas.chimat.org.uk/IAS/metadata/view/indicatorinstance?id=32993&norefer=true

3.8 Low birth weight babies

Low birth weight (babies born weighing less than 2.5kg) is a major determinant of mortality,
morbidity and disability in infancy and childhood and also has a long-term impact on health
outcomes in childhood and adult life. Low birth weight of full term babies is obviously of most
concern and routinely monitored. Figure 5 shows the trend across the LMS and compares with
England.

Figure 5: Trend in percentage of low birth weight at term babies

3.5 - . .
% Low Birthweight at Term
3.0 - JAN . "/
A
A\
25 - \/W /
207 = \/
15 -
1.0 -
0.5 -
e BANES e Swindon Wiltshire e England
0.0 T T T T T T T T T T 1

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Source: ChiMat

The average percentage of low birth weight babies at term has been falling in England as has the
percentage in both Wiltshire and B&NES. In Swindon the percentage has been rising and is now
higher than the England average.

3.9 Caesarean births

Unnecessary caesarean (not medically indicated) births carry additional risk of complication to both
the mother and baby as well as increased health care costs. The latest data available locally (Table
6) shows the percentage of caesarean births broken down by NHS Trust and by CCG area in 2016-17.
The data ranges from 22.9% at the Royal United Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, significantly lower
than the South West median of 24.9%, to 27.6% at the Great Western Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust, significantly higher than the South West median.

17
Page 45



Table 6: Caesarean births rates by NHS Trust and CCG area (2016-17)

Caesarean birth (1)

NHS Trust

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust 22.9%
Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 27.6%
Salisbury Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 23.1%

CCG

B&NES Data not available
Swindon 27.6%
Wiltshire 23.6%
South West median 24.9%

Source: (1) South West Clinical Network Maternity Dashboard

Work has commenced across the LMS to explore caesarean birth rates. This includes a dedicated
research project at GWH being supported by the University of West of England.

3.10 Breastfeeding

Breastfeeding reduces the risk of infant infection and mortality and confers protection for the
mother from breast cancer. There is also some evidence that breastfed babies have lower incidence
of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS), are less likely to be obese as children and have a higher 1Q.
Table 7 shows the latest annual data and a more up to date snapshot from the regional maternity
dashboard.

Table 7: Breastfeeding initiation by area

Breastfeeding initiation by area Breastfeeding initiation

1415 (1) 1516 (2) 1617 (2)
Swindon 84.1% 84.4% 79.2%
B&NES 76.3% 84.4% 85.9%
Wiltshire 80.1% 76.3%* 74.4%*
South West 79% 77.4% (median) 77.9% (median)
England 74.3% n/a n/a

Source: (1) Department of Health Statistical releases / (2) South West Clinical Network Maternity
Dashboard / *affected by data quality issues

Breastfeeding initiation rates in Swindon, B&NES and Wiltshire have been higher than the national
and regional averages for many years. This continues to be the case although data quality issues
have affected the ability to monitor progress accurately over the last 12 months.

However, a closer look at the data reveals variation in relation to age and deprivation. Breastfeeding
initiation rates are lower in more deprived areas and breastfeeding initiation among young mothers
(under 25 years of age) is statistically significantly lower than any other age group.

18
Page 46



Despite a high percentage of women initiating breastfeeding, historic data suggests that many
women cease breastfeeding in the early weeks. Due to changes in the way 6-8 week breastfeeding
data is collected recent data quality is variable across the LMS and, therefore, not included. As data
quality improves breastfeeding drop-off rates will be monitored and analysed to ensure women are
being supported to sustain breastfeeding.

3.11 Multiple births

Figure 6: Trend in multiple births which carry risks for both the mother and baby

35 -
Percentage of Multiple Maternities
3.0 -
25 -
2.0 -
15 -
1.0 1 ——BANES
05 - e Swindon
Wiltshire
0.0 T T T T T T T T T T T 1

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Source: ONS Vital Statistics

The trend for both B&NES and Wiltshire is generally consistent and the same. The trend in Swindon
is increasing and is now higher than both B&NES and Wiltshire. This may be linked to increasing
numbers of fertility treatments and associated potential percentage of multiple births.

3.12 Infant mortality and stillbirth

Wiltshire, Swindon and B&NES MSLC maintains regular oversight and scrutiny of infant mortality and
stillbirth data to enable it to fulfil its key function of ensuring maternity care is of the highest quality.
Infant mortality is well recognised as an indicator of population health; the wellbeing of infants,
children and pregnant women; and of progress towards addressing inequalities. Most infant deaths
occur in the first 27 days of life and stillbirths and infant deaths are associated with a number of
complex risk factors, including obesity, smoking, maternal age and inequalities.

It is well recognised that many of the risk factors that impact on low birth weight, infant mortality
and stillbirth are disproportionately represented in the most deprived communities. Local data
supports this.

The Wiltshire, Swindon and B&NES Stillbirth and Infant Mortality Report (2017) looked in detail at
births, stillbirths, perinatal and infant mortality across the LMS and associated risk factors over the
last ten years. In summary:

19
Page 47



e Infant mortality rates in B&NES and Swindon are reducing across the STP.
e The stillbirth rates are broadly similar in all areas although the trends vary. There is an upward
trend in B&NES, a downward trend in Swindon and a fairly consistent trend in Wiltshire.

The stillbirth baseline rate is 5.6 per 1000 which is estimated to reduce to 5 per 1000 (2019), 4.8
(19/20), 4.6 (20/21). Further information on stillbirth and neonatal death actions feature in section

Perinatal mortality rates are similar for all areas. The trend in Swindon is reducing; for B&NES and
Wiltshire the trend is flat.

3.13 Key Challenges

Based on the factors set out in this section, the key challenges facing the LMS are as follows:

e Improve maternal nutrition and reduce maternal obesity levels.

e  Reduce smoking in pregnancy to 6% by 2022.

e Increase the uptake of the flu in pregnancy vaccination to better protect women.

e Increase breastfeeding rates with a particular focus on young mothers and those from more
deprived communities.

e  Maintain implementation of the NHSE Saving Babies’ Lives care bundle and monitor progress.

e Improve the care pathway for women with maternal mental health difficulties, including those
with chronic low-level problems.

e Developing continuity of carer and appropriate staffing levels in the context of a rising birth rate
and increasing complexity within existing resources.

e Managing the expectations of staff, service users, their families and communities.

e Ensure equity of maternity provision across the LMS whilst ensuring services are able to respond
to demographic variations and the differing needs of the population.

e  Ensure we have sustainable workforce across our system with robust planning.

e Ensure we continue to consult and co-create our vision and future delivery of our services with
our population.

e  Ensure we balance improving the overall health of the maternal population with targeting
interventions effectively to address the health inequalities that exist.

4.0 The views of women

In April 2017 Public Health professionals worked together with service user representatives from the
MSLC to develop and implement an online Place of Birth Survey. The survey focussed on what
and/or who informs women'’s decision about where to birth their baby and was targeted at women
who were currently pregnant and those who had given birth within the last year. The week long
survey received 850 responses.

The respondents were from a fairly representative sample in terms of deprivation and there was a
50:50 split between those pregnant and those who had given birth in the last 12 months. The data
was analysed, themes drawn out and the following recommendations made:

20
Page 48



e Develop ways of engaging with partners and ensuring they have access to unbiased information
to inform decision making around place of birth.

e  Ensure unbiased information and discussion that includes the risks and benefits of all birthing
options is offered to all expectant parents consistently across the Local Maternity System. To
include identifying and agreeing use of an online tool, e.g. Which Choices.

e Actively promote positive birth stories and experiences to expectant parents and the wider
community to promote positive birthing generally and to help break down misconceptions
about certain birthing choices, such as birthing in the community.

e  Engage with service users to gain a more detailed and deeper understanding of what aspects of
birth environment affect their decision about where to birth.

e Adopt a similar methodology in the future to gather feedback from a representative sample of
service users on issues related to maternal health and care.

Maternity services have a variety of tools to gather patient experience and feedback including
Friends and Family Test (FFT), CQC Maternity Picker Survey, Birth Reflections, Compliments and
Complaints. This information is regularly triangulated to gather themes, both positive and areas for
improvement, to ensure priorities align with what our women and their families are telling us.

Local themes include:

e Quality of care — kindness, compassion, listening.

e  Continuity of Carer — antenatal and postnatal.

e  Better communication between teams / other health professionals.
e  Emotional wellbeing and support in the post-natal period.

There are clear similarities to the national picture and the priorities of Better Births: Safer Care,
Personalised Care, and Continuity of Carer, Working across boundaries, Multi-professional working
and Better Postnatal and Perinatal Mental Healthcare (Better Births). All maternity services have
facilitated or are planning to run ‘Whose Shoes’ workshops. The word cloud below features an
example from one of our Trust’s.

21
Page 49



Standardised care throughout

Gooéo(geo“rsr:%elfrﬁcation ContinUity of Care

Respectful carereel valued pore Antenatal Slasses

Greater involvement of family  Positive Staff Attitudes
Flexbiity Home from home environment

Caring staff See the same midwife
elaxing birth environment

R
Individual needs met(Chjce

5.0 Better Births Gap Analysis

All maternity providers completed a self-assessment against the Better Births recommendations.
These assessments were reviewed at the MSLC and common themes drawn together to help shape
the priorities of this transformation plan.

Themes from the ‘Better Births’ analysis from 2016
There are seven areas that each provider within the B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire LMS measured
themselves against. This self-assessment was formulated as a GAP analysis.
Red — unlikely to achieve this recommendation without significant investment or service
transformation, which has not yet been agreed.

— have a good possibility of achieving this recommendation within the national time-frame.
Green — already meet this recommendation or can realistically achieve it by March 2017.

22
Page 50



Table 8: Themes from the ‘Better Births’ analysis from 2016

Work stream

Positives

Overall RAG rating

Challenges

Personalised care and
choice

All 3 providers
currently looking at
ways of giving
unbiased information

e 2 providers have 3 out
of 4 birth place
choices.

e  Personalised plans
not fully
implemented.

Continuity of Carer

In some areas there is
evidence of continuity
of in the antenatal
period

e All providers have a
high number of
midwives that have
chosen to work part
time.

e None of the three
maternity services
have continuity within
the maternity
workforces.

Perinatal infant mental
health pathway is

e Post natal care
provision is patchy

Better Postnatal and being developed across and there is little Amber
perinatal mental the LMS footprint and consistency in the
healthcare all providers are post natal offer.
engaged with this e There is a variation in
development availability of
community mental
health services.
All providers are o There are no shared
Working across involved with local policies and pathways Amber

boundaries systems- MSLC and between the
planned maternity providers.
forum ¢ Digital systems are
not compatible
between providers.
e  Community hubs are
not yet a
consideration.
All providers site a The rapid redress scheme is an
culture of learning and | expectation but this has not
Safer care continuous been outlined nationally
improvement
Duty of Candour in
placein all

organisations
All providers are signed
up to the National
Maternity and
Neonatal Health safety
Collaborative

Multiprofessional
working

All providers have
teams that train and
learn together

e Peer reviews not yet
in place

e No systems in place to
learn across the

Amber

23

Page 51



region

Payment System National system not yet in test

5.1 Personalised Care and Choice
Our vision for personalised care and choice is:

o Women and their families will be fully informed and receive unbiased information. They will be
actively involved in co-creating their care plan and feel listened to throughout this process.

e  Women and their families will enjoy positive experiences and feel safe.

e There is recognition that pregnancy and beyond is a dynamic pathway so as an LMS we need to
be responsive and iterative and ensure there is “time to talk and time to listen”.

e  Staff across the LMS are confident and skilled to undertake their roles, feel supported to provide
the care they want to, and have the time and capacity to provide a partnership role throughout
the pregnancy journey and beyond.

All three providers currently provide individual care planning to women through historically
delivered models. This process begins from the booking appointment and continues through the
maternal journey to postnatal care. The LMS will be reviewing this process to ensure parity of
process and patient experience across the STP footprint via the MSLC to include users and other
providers across antenatal and postnatal care. The next stages are detailed in the action plan on
page 33.

A dedicated Programme Board utilising a full PMO (project management) approach has been
developed to support the choice of place of birth work stream. Informal staff and public engagement
began in January 2017 and a shortlist of options for redesign will be agreed by March 2018. This
may require formal public and staff consultation depending on the agreed shortlist. This redesign
work will cover provision of antenatal, postnatal and labour care as well as consideration of the
number and location of maternity clinical hubs and will reflect the priorities set out in Better Births.
The following table demonstrates the proposed timeline for this work, which has been mapped
across the revised NHS service reconfiguration model. We are currently working on stage one of this
process. We are currently working on stage one of this process with an expected Stage 1 NHS
reconfiguration meeting timetabled for April 2018. As a result of the mandated revised service
reconfiguration requirements, our initial project plan timetable has been revised.

24
Page 52



Next Steps + Programme Delivery

Action

Date Status
1. Co-creation of strategic Maternity Transformation Plan (MTP) stage one I

July-September2017

2. Draft MTP submitted —stage one October 20% 2017

2. RUH informal engagement commenced —stage one January2017

1. RUH informal engagement long list of options scored —stage one September —November2017

5. Identification of short list options toinform LMS plan —stage two

December 2017
5. Co-designof LMS propesal (Including RUH elements) —stage two January-July 2018 In Progress
7. Discussion, Assurance and Approvals for recommendstions for chaﬂgeﬁg& NHSE, Clinical
Eenate, HOSC, Boards etc.)—stage three/four Ay September2018
8. Developmentof consultation plan and matarials —stage three ffour May-September 2018 In Progress
S 3 3 End of September- end of
B. Formal public and patient engagementand/ or consultation —stage five December 2018

Service Review and STP governance sign-off of Public and patient Refresh of MTP post
development

MTP vision Co-design of care for change engagement commences engagement and Governance sign-off
of MTP and consultation assurance options
process

RUH Informal engagement Creation of RUH options shortlist

>
=X
| @
L =
o i © 3
_ = o i
- @ 3 [a)] (3
= = £% = (7] o o /
s 2 = 3, )
= o (2% © g -g o )
=3 o §& = i} L p-

5.1.2 Service Reconfiguration

A key element of this work stream is a maternity service reconfiguration review. Informal staff and
public engagement began in January 2017 and a shortlist of co-created options for redesign has

been agreed. Formal public consultation, in line with the revised NHSE service reconfiguration
model, will be commencing in September 2018.

This redesign work will cover provision of antenatal, postnatal and labour care and will reflect the

priorities set out in the National Maternity Transformation Programme. The following diagram
demonstrates the timeline for this work:

Develop draft pre-

A - —_— Itati busi
meeting — 13 March options — end March CORSUIEATIS BUSINESS
case — 4 May

NHSE Stage 1 Identify shortlisted

NHS England Formal public
assurance process consultation (12
including Stage 2 weeks) — 27

meeting — 2 July to 15 September to 19
August December

Present tests 3 and 5
to SW Clinical senate
— 19 June

e Present consultation :
De_velop C-]ECISIOI'I outcomes and draft decision Communicate
making business case

making business case to outcome to
—January to February approval and scrutiny

2019 committees — March to stakeho:;gir; = WkeRy
April 2019

Implementation of change — May
2019 onwards

25
Page 53



A dedicated Maternity Services Steering Group utilising a full PMO (project management) approach
has been developed to support the service redesign work stream. The Clinical Case for Change has
been drafted for full STP footprint governance sign off and includes nationally led improvement
work such as Better Births, the wider Maternity Transformation Programme and local drivers
highlighted in this plan. A Clinical Senate Review will take place in June 2018 as part of the
assurance process.

The rationale for this redesign work is that the current choice of place of birth for women and
families is resulting in:

*  Underutilisation in some care settings

*  Mismatch between workloads and staffing levels

*  Current variation in LMS provision and birth environments

The key aims of this programme are:
* Improved outcomes and experience across STP
* Safe and consist service
*  Parity of access
*  Maximising efficient use of resources

The sign-off process for any change proposals will include the BSW STP, HOSCs, CCG Governing
Bodies, and Acute Provider Boards and will follow the defined NSHE Service reconfiguration process.
Communication with all these partners has already commenced at pace with informal briefings
provided to all partners by May 3™ 2018. Communications and engagement activities will be
overseen by the LHE Communication and Engagement Working Group, reporting into the Acute
Maternity Services Steering Group.

The LMS recognises that there is the opportunity to further improve maternity services, to focus on
safety and equity, and to be responsive to the choices that women are making. Before developing
any options for service change, there has been a period of informal engagement to help understand
what matters most to our maternity service users, what families want from our maternity services
and what drives the choices they are making in relation to their care and decision making around
where to have their baby. Informal engagement also sought to understand what service users feel is
good about current service provision and what they would like to see improved.

To gather this information, in January 2017 the RUH launched informal patient and public
engagement activity to broadly outline the need for change and to gather feedback on what matters
most to women and families when choosing where to give birth. Over the period of 3 months they
had feedback from over 800 people including staff, mums and stakeholders, via questionnaires and
discussion groups. A summary of engagement activities is set out in the diagram below.

26
Page 54



Summary of engagement activities

»

Informal public

engagement Staff
Focus groups BUEEEETE
held in Bath,
Radstock,
Materni taff Melksham and I;eedtll).lack of
a e!'nl_ty sta Trowbridge ey themes
briefings _
Online survey -
789 responses April-June
January 2017 (Uni of Bath 2017
analysis)
February-
March 2017

Informal public
& staff
engagement

Scoring the
‘long list’ to
create the
‘short list’

26t September
2017

11th October
2017
&

15t November
2017

Outputs from this informal engagement work have been used to support the development of a long
list of options which has been scored against defined criteria to create a short list of options. In

parallel the MSLC undertook a place of birth survey to understand the views of women and families.
In two weeks, over 850 responses were received and this rich data has also been used to inform our

case for change.

5.2 Continuity of Carer

The LMS is exploring a pilot approach to delivering the continuity of carer agenda. The diagram
below details the potential options of delivering continuity of care for antenatal and postnatal

pathways across the STP footprint.

Figure 7: Proposed Model of Continuity

PROPOSED MODEL OF CONTINUITY

CONTINUITY OF CARE

birthing unit, home birth,
co-located birthing unit

A e N 3
( Y \
BATH SWINDON SALISBURY
e Obstetric unit standalone >

Pre- Antenatal
conceptual

care -_—

Postnatal

CONTINUITY OF CARER ASPIRATION

Page 55

27



Our vision is that in the next 5 years women will be cared for by a team of professionals
throughout their pregnancy, birth and postnatal journey that they know and trust.

It has been acknowledged that one of our key enablers will be workforce transformation. The LMS
has agreed that we will target our initial pilots on vulnerable women and families.

Our key actions are:

1) For each provider to undertake as a Ql pilot project in autumn 2018.

2) To engage the existing workforce.

3) To focus initially on providing continuity across ante-natal and post-natal pathways. On call
options will be explored as part of this model to facilitate continuity of carer for the intrapartum
period of care (acknowledging working time directives).

4) For obstetric teams within our providers to review continuity.

5) To undertake a full workforce review informed by the evaluation of Ql pilot projects. This will
link in with our planned HEE supported local workforce review.

6) To develop key messages to support expectations of women, families and staff.

7) To ensure revised models of care are supported by the appropriate protocols and infrastructure,
such as agreements for staff to work across geographical and organisational boundaries.

5.3 Safer Care —

Safety of mothers and their babies is one of the most important aims in delivering maternity
services. In BSW each commissioning organisation (organisations that are responsible for
planning and purchasing services for their local population) has processes in place to monitor
the performance and quality of the services provided to women and babies, to ensure that they
deliver safe, high quality care at the appropriate time. These processes have been strengthened
by collaborative commissioning agreements across the BSW LMS area. In delivering this plan,
the monitoring of performance, quality and safety will be improved through the introduction of
a quality and safety improvement system across the whole LMS, taking a collaborative approach
to improving safety in Maternity services.

5.3.1 LMS Maternity Safety Sub-group

A clinically-led multidisciplinary LMS Maternity Safety Sub-Group has been developed; membership
includes healthcare providers, commissioners, stakeholders and service users. This sub group will
report directly into and will be accountable to the LMS Programme Board and ultimately to the
Commissioner and Provider Boards and Networks. The first meeting of this group was held in
January 2018 and is chaired by a Head of Nursing and Midwifery from within the LMS. Safety
Champions for Maternity within each Acute Provider Trust participating in the national maternity
and neonatal safety collaborative will also contribute to the LMS maternity safety sub-group. Quality
and safety assurance is currently provided through commissioner contractual processes with each
Trust. Performance of this sub group will be measured through key agreed indicators and through
review of the provider dashboards.

The vision for the Maternity Safety Sub Group is for all women, babies and their families, across all
care settings within the LMS, to receive the safest, highest quality care and experience with the

28
Page 56



best possible outcome. This will be achieved through a collaborative approach with consistent and
effective care.

The focus for the Maternity Safety Sub Group will be one of safe systems and processes. The group
will initially focus on the development of a combined Safety Improvement Plan, supported by the
Maternal and Neonatal Heath Safety Collaborative programme. The focus will be on working to
remove any barriers to implementing Better Birth recommendations with the aim of meeting the
ambition to reduce the rate of stillbirths, neonatal and maternal deaths in England by 50% by 2025
and making

The LMS will utilise established quality assessment frameworks, benchmarking information using
data provided by the National Maternity data set and also the Southwest Clinical benchmarking
dashboard. In addition national and local audits and reports will be reviewed to highlight
opportunities for safety and quality improvement.

Once available the National Maternity Indicators and Quality Improvement metrics will be utilised to
identify areas of concern to be reviewed and actions plans formulated.

5.3.2 Areas of Priority for LMS Safety Improvement plan.

The key areas within the safety domain to be focused on and incorporated into the LMS Safety
Improvement plan are detailed in table 9.

29
Page 57



Table 9 — Areas of priority for the LMS Safety Improvement Plan

O O O O O O

To review data sources to ensure all required data is available in a timely way across LMS.
Introduction of external peer review in the event of a serious incident.

Standardising the approach to root cause analysis

Introduction of a human factors approach to incident investigation

Consistency across the LMS with red flag reporting

Consistency relating to incident reporting triggers, particularly in the event of a serious
incident

Reducing the number of still births and neonatal and maternal deaths in line with national
targets — Each baby counts / Saving babies lives care bundle/NHSR

Meeting the National Perinatal & Maternity Audit (NPMA) recommendations

MBRRACE Saving Lives, Improving Mothers’ Care lessons learned

Transitional Care - reducing unnecessary separation of term babies (ATAIN) — NHSi Ambition
to reduce admissions of full term babies to neonatal units by 20%

Participation in the Maternity and Neonatal Health Safety Collaborative — a three year
programme to improve quality and safety in maternity and neonatal units

Health Education England funding to improve training within maternity services - multi-
professional training recommendations from the 2016 National Maternity Review report:
‘Better Births

To ensure that women and their family’s concerns are heard and acted upon to implement
service improvements in relation to safety and quality. This would include drawing on
learning from Maternity Voice Partnerships, complaints, compliments, birth reflections
services and sharing with and across LMS.

Benchmarking against national audits such as the Mothers and Babies Reducing Risk
through Audits and Confidential Enquiries across the UK (MBRRACE-UK), the National
Perinatal Epidemiology Unit (NPEU) and the National Maternal and Perinatal Audits (NMPA)
— Each Baby counts and the Neonatal Critical Care review.

Actions required to comply with Saving Babies Lives Care bundle by March 2019

Actions required to comply with NHS resolution criteria framework.

Integration of Maternity Safety Collaborative projects across the LMS

Page 58

30



5.3.3 Saving Babies Lives

Saving Babies Lives is a national initiative launched in 2016 which has four key elements of care
that contribute to reducing the number of stillbirths and neonatal deaths.

¢ All women are asked about their smoking status at booking.

1 ¢- Women who are smoking at booking or have recently stopped are
Re d u C e S m O kl n g referred (unless they opt out) to the smoking cessation service.
. o- All women are offered a carbon monoxide test booking.
| n p reg n a n Cy - All women should discuss smoking at each clinical contact.

¢ Action- All providers to be compliant by March 2019

*Women at highest risk of fetal growth restriction to be offered serial

Risk Assessment

and surveillance
e Providers compliant but risk exists dependant upon capacity.

fo r g rOWt h ¢ Ations -Work required to map activity and determine workforce
requirements

assessment

VAN

¢ All women are provided with a leaflet highlighting the importance of
identifying reduced fetal movement at the start of the third

Ra ISI ng trimester.
- All women are reminded of the importance of monitoring fetal
awareness of

movements throughout the third trimester.
- All women are encouraged to attend their local maternity unit for

assessment and monitoring if they experience reduced fetal
reduced fetal G
¢ Action - Audit information provision to all women.
m Ove m e nts ¢ Map activity assocciated with this element to identiy capacity or

workforce requirements

VAN

o All staff receive training on electronic fetal monitoring training. Fresh
eyes process embedded in labour.

¢ Aim to evaluate costs of electronic archiving and centralised
monitoring of CTGS for storage, revie w,teaching and governance .

¢ -There will be ia review of telemetry equipment, to identify any
capital that may be required to standarise provision of care.

U N J

5.3.4 Sharing of learning

Incident investigation, complaints and claims will be shared to ensure LMS wide peer learning takes
place. The group will also study thematic reviews and trends and will receive and seek feedback
from local, regional and national clinical networks through joint membership. A process for sharing
learning will be agreed across the LMS to include identification of key learning, process for
dissemination and evaluation of effectiveness of system.

31
Page 59



5.3.5 Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch ( HSIB)

In November 2017, the Secretary of State for Health announced a new maternity safety strategy
detailing plans for the Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch (HSIB) to undertake around 1,000
independent safety investigations into avoidable baby deaths and incidents of harm nationally.
These investigations are expected to start in April 2018, and will focus on cases that meet the Each
Baby Counts (EBC) criteria for intrapartum stillbirth, neonatal deaths and severe brain injuries, as
well as all maternal deaths. The EBC is a dedicated programme, established by the Royal College of
Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, to gather intelligence and information from local serious incident
investigations and build a picture of national issues.

The aim is to bring a standardised approach to maternity investigations without attributing blame or
liability and to ensure that families are involved throughout the investigation. The HSIB maternity
implementation team are working through the finer details around approach and methodology but
each investigation will:

e Identify the factors that may have contributed towards death or harm;
e Use evidence-based accounts to establish what happened and why;
e  Produce concise reports in the shortest time possible

Our LMS supports this approach and will fully cooperate with any investigations that the HSIB may
initiate within our LMS.

5.3.6 NHS Resolution Framework

The National Maternity Safety Strategy published in November 2017 set out the Department of
Health’s ambition to incentivise those who are striving to improve safety. Clinical Negligence Scheme
for Trusts (CNST) is a scheme that NHS providers pay into in order for the NHS Litigation Authority to
handle all clinical negligence claims that may arise. Although membership of the scheme is
voluntary, all NHS Trusts in England currently belong to the scheme. It is BSW aim to submit
evidence towards delivery of each of the 10 criteria in the CNST incentive scheme in order to receive
a 10% reduction in CNST rate for each Trust. This has the potential to release approximately xxx
which could be reinvested in safety improvement activities within maternity services. The ten safety
improvement criteria that will be met are:

32
Page 60



NHS Resolution Criteria

1. Use of the National Perinatal Mortality Review Tool to review perinatal
deaths.

2. Submission of data to the Maternity Services Data Set (MSDS) to the
required standard.

3. To demonstrate that there are transitional care facilities that are in place
and operational. to support the implementation of the ATAIN Programme.
4. To demonstrate an effective system of medical workforce planning.

5. To demonstrate an effective system of midwifery workforce planning.

6. To demonstrate compliance with all four elements of the Saving Babies'
Lives care bundle.

7. To demonstrate that there is a patient feedback mechanism for maternity
services, such as the Maternity Voices Partnership Forum, and that we
regularly act on feedback.

8. To evidence that 90% of each maternity unit staff group have attended an
'in-house' multi-professional maternity emergencies training session within
the last training year.

9. To demonstrate that the trust safety champions (obstetrician and midwife)
are meeting bi-monthly with Board level champions to escalate locally
identified issues.

10. To report 100% of qualifying incidents in 2017/18 under NHS Early
Resolution scheme

CQC Assessments — Maternity & Gynaecology Services

Below is a summary of the Maternity & Gynaecology CQC ratings for the three provider

organisations within the LMS. Services are currently rated as Good overall; however, all three were

rated as requires improvement in the Safety domain. This is for a variety of reasons including

bereavement facilities, staffing levels, maintenance and provision of equipment.

Table 9: Maternity & Gynaecology CQC ratings

Hospital Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well Overall | Date of
Led inspection

RUH Requires Mar-16
improvement

GWH . Requires Oct-16
improvement

SET . Requires Dec-15
improvement

Page 61

33




Each Provider has a local action plan to address recommendations from the CQC inspections and
good progress has been made in a number of areas in light of the CQC Reviews. Progress against
CQC recommendations will be reviewed by the LMS Programme Board on an annual basis.

6.0 Financial Case for Change

The Local Maternity System has not identified any prescribed financial savings as part of its
development of this transformation plan. This has been acknowledged by the STP leadership group.
However, this plan aims to deliver safe and efficient services, which reduce duplication and explore
transformation opportunities. As these opportunities arise, full cost benefit analysis will be
undertaken with a view to reinvesting any achieved savings in areas of service improvement to
support a cost neutral approach. A potential example of this is a review of the triage process for
woman in labour to standardise model of care, improve consistency and reduce duplication across
the three providers.

As and when the early adopters’ feedback on progress with personal budgets, the LMS will review its
position and agree next steps and timeframes.

6.1 LMS Maternity Contracts

Currently the LMS has standard PBR contracts across all providers in line with the national Maternity
Pathway.

6.2 Current Spend
The tables below details current spend on maternity services across the STP footprint:

Table 10a: Wiltshire CCG:

1617 1718 FOT
RUH £9,604,700 RUH £10,620,455
GWH £3,642,372 GWH £3,696,852
SFT £6,237,010 SFT £7,303,294
Total £19,484,083 Total £21,620,601

Table 10b: Swindon CCG

1617 1718 FOT

GWH £3,878,552 GWH £5,646,916

34
Page 62



OUH £25,225 OUH £37,464
NBT £13,792 NBT £9,189
Total £3,917,569 Total £5,693,569
Table 10c: BANES CCG

1617 1718 FOT
RUH £6,594,755 RUH £6,997,123
UHB £883,242 UHB £687,362
NBT £123,775 NBT £154,212
Total £7,601,772 Total £7,838,697

A Finance Working Group has been developed with its first meeting in January 2018 to commence

costings of the shortlisted models of service provision. Due to the timeframes of our service

reconfiguration, further data of future costings are not available at this time.

6.3 National LMS funding

The LMS has reviewed the use of its nationally allocated ring-fenced funding. The table below

provides detail for the 17/18 allocation with indicative values also provided for 18/19 planning:

Table 11a: 17/18 allocation

Scheme

Value

Lead

1. Appointment of Project
Midwife ( band 8a 1wte)

2. Equipment for project
midwife

£10,117k

£2k (including mileage)

Programme Director/ Lead
Midwife

3. Clinical sessions to support £37.883k Provider leads
service reconfiguration
(includes primary care )

4. Development of Maternity £9k RUH
APP

5. Implementation of £14k Public Health
engagement with fathers —
investment in Dads Pad app
across STP

6. Development of Maternity £4k
voices and public engagement

Total £77K

Page 63

35




Table 1b: 18/19 allocation (to be confirmed)

Scheme Value Lead
1. Appointment of Project FYE Programme Director/ Lead
Midwife ( band 8a 1wte) Midwife
2. Clinical sessions to support 0.4wte FYE Provider leads
service reconfiguration
(includes primary care )
3. Development of Maternity FYE RUH
APP
4. Extension of Dads Pad FYE Public Health
5. Development of VBAC DVD £5k Swindon CCG
Total £144k

Page 64

36




7. Local Maternity System Vision for 2021

Our co-created LMS vision is for: “All women to have a safe and positive birth and

maternity experience, and be prepared to approach parenting with

confidence. ” Our work plan is underpinned by four core commitments:

Sion. wp 4o

SAFETY

s
baby on the way,
quit foday

Whan gau're pregnant, if you smoke
your babs smakes. We <an halp yoo gut,

“ﬁ
Atk your midwide about more hesithy habits
+hat are good for you and kaby 100.

Women and their chosen support networks will be
partnersin care

*Women will receive unbiased, timely information to enable them to participate
fully in personalised care planning, and they will be encouraged to explore and
question available options. Services will reflect on the language they use, focusing
on the women’s experience. Above all women will be listened to.

Maternity services and organisational partners within the
LMS will work collaboratively

*Women will receive a service that is seamless and joined up irrespective of where
they access their care. Women will receive personalised care and staff will be
enabled to provide continuity.

We will enhance safety through assisting all women to experience

the best birth possible for their personal circumstances.

*Woman will be supported to make informed decisions, ensuring risks and
benefits are assessed, discussed and managed proportionality.

*We will adopt an approach that works with the physiology of labour and
optimises physical and mental good health.

eLearning will be shared across organisations and multidisciplinary teams will
learn together.

Woman, partners and their families will be supported and
enabled to optimise their health in preparation for pregnancy,
birth and parenthood.

Ensuring staff have the skills and confidence to deliver consistent and effective

public health interventions that positively impact on outcomes for women and
children.

37
Page 65



The diagram below illustrates the range of services that are available for woman and families during
their maternity journey dependent on their level of need.

Children’s
Centre Pregnancy
Services 4 Service

Specialst
Community
Perinatal Mental
Health Services A

Neonatologists
paediatrics

i Breastfeeding
Peer support J8 atho : p Antenatal
g : screening

Childrens’
social care

Infant
feeding
support

7.1 Implementing the vision

The action plan below was informed by a series of stakeholder workshops and is working document
that identifies the direction of travel. This action plan will be developed further by our LMS and will
be flexible to meet agreed objectives. Our focus has been on co-creation of the actions.

It is envisaged that organisations will take a lead on individual elements of the action plan. The
allocation of these work streams and subsequent co-creation will take place during November 2017
and the action plan will be updated to include timescales, risks, mitigation and leads.

7.2 Trajectories and ambitions

There are a number of key national ambitions that this plan is expected to impact on. These are set
out below. Where data is available local trajectories have been set to help us clearly monitor
progress. Where baseline data is not yet available the LMS will prioritise identifying a baseline in the
coming months so that milestones can be set.

38
Page 66



Birth projections (detailed in section 3.3) that underpin this are summarised below.

Table 13: Birth Projections

Number of births and projection for each year

Local baseline 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
BSW LMS 9,790 10,127 10,213 10,238
Percentage - 3.4% 0.8% 0.2%
growth
Ambitions and Trajectories
- Local Trajector Trajector Trajector
Ambition . J y J y J y
baseline | March 2019 | March 2020 March 2021

1. To improve the safety of maternity care so that by 2020/21 significant progress has
been made towards the ambition of halving the rates of stillbirth and neonatal death,
maternal death and brain injuries during birth by 50% by 2030

Stillbirths and 5.6 per 1,000 55 51 48
neonatal deaths =60 (2013-
15)

Intrapartum brain Baseline to
injuries be set

nationally
2. Toroll out personalised care planning
Number of Baseline to 20% 50% 60%
personalised care be set
plans

2. Toimprove choices available so that all women are able to make choices about their
maternity care as envisaged in Better Births. This includes antenatal care, postnatal
care and type and place of birth.

Number of women
able to choose from
three places of birth

50%

60%

75%

95%

3. Toimprove continuity of the perso

postnatally

n taking care of women during pregnancy, birth and

Number of women
receiving continuity
of carer

Baseline to
be set

20%

30%

40%

4. To enable more women to give birth in midwifery settings (at home and in midwifery

units)

Baseline 16/17 data

RUH

GWH

SFT

Total

Number of women
giving birth in all
settings

4641

4555

2202

11,398

Page 67

39




Consultant led

3,761(80.18)

3635 (80%)

Not available

Not available

Alongside midwife led | 0 875 (19.2%) 0 751 (6.4%)
Free standing 680(14.8%) 0 0 680
midwife led

Home birth 137 (2.95%) | 48 (1.05% 83 (3.76%) 249 (2.1%)
Other 0 25 0 25

LMS Total % of 15%

Midwife led place of
birth

Total LMS % of
Consultant led place
of birth

80% ( 2 providers)

7.3 Shaping our LMS future and timeframes

The LMS has reviewed its detailed action plan for implementing our Maternity Transformation Plan.

This features in table 14. We have also co-produced a high level summary of what will look different

in 6 months, 12 months and two years. The delivery of these ambitions will be monitored by our
dedicated project midwife who was appointed on January 25" 2018.

One of the key actions to be completed by the LMS Programme Board is to agree our maternity offer

to women and this will be confirmed at the LMS Programme Board on July 30™ 2018.

Six month ambitions

Our Dad Pad —to support Dad’s and help signpost to services — will be rolled out across the LMS
and developed as an App.

The LMS will have commenced the development of a dedicated Maternity App.

The LMS will have commenced a Plan Do Study Act (PDSA) review of booking appointments and
would have started trialling alternative models that begin the process of implementing a women
led model of personalised care planning. The current data collection requirements will be
reviewed to improve the experience of women and staff.

The LMS will have developed and mobilised a ‘Welcome Pack’ to support women and families.
This work will include a review and improvement of patient information such as greater
signposting to the Which Choice tool.

Our dedicated Safety Group will be mobilised.

The LMs will commence exploring procurement opportunities.

The LMS will have improved our postnatal continuity of care/r ( within existing resources)

The LMS will develop an STP approach to Perinatal and Infant Mental Health

The LMS will have created a platform for working across boundaries — this will include IG
solutions.

The LMS would have commenced local workforce mapping linking with HEE.

40
Page 68



12 month ambitions

The LMS will deliver a revised choice offer for women and families.

The dedicated Maternity App will be online and mobilised.

The LMS will have confirmed a standardised role for Maternity Support Workers.

The LMS will introduce group supervision to create a safe place for midwifes to discuss issues
and concerns.

The LMS will have improved capture and subsequent learning from patient experience linking in
with maternity voices partnership.

The LMS will have developed plans to improve the triage of women in labour.

A Ql and associated framework model for transformation will be implemented.

Delivery of pilots for new continuity of carer models — focused on vulnerable women.

The LMS will be ensuring and delivering full women and family involvement in our service
reconfiguration and transformation journey.

Two year ambitions

The LMS will be delivering improved continuity of carer to a broader cohort of women.

The LMS will be delivering all our safety ambitions and trajectories.

The LMS will have delivered and will be measuring the impact of a consistent parenting pathway
for vulnerable groups.

The LMS will have created and be delivering our clinical/ community hubs.

The LMS will have created and delivered transitional care.

41
Page 69



Key Workstreams

Personalised
care

Cross-Cutting Themes with STP workstreams

Antenatal and
postnatal care

WO rkfo rce *Ensure maternity workforce
. transformation is included in STP
Transformation  workstream
eConsider all aspects of estate in
EStateS context of STP workstream
eAlign maternity digital agenda
HP with STP digital workstream for
D Igltal information and record sharing

and governance.

Page 70

42



Table 14: Actions, current position and next steps

Action

Current Position

Next Steps

Lead and timeframes

Personalised care and choice

Share local policies and agree
common language and protocols
around maternity care.
Align/standardise policies as much
as possible.

LMS planning workshops have
included discussions on common
language.

Non standardised language at
present but each Provider already
working with staff to discuss
language used.

Policies and protocols similar as
based on national guidance but
require review to identify
differences that could be
discussed as LMS.

Set up LMS Policy Group
Consider drop box or other
method of sharing guidelines.
Heads of Midwifery Services
(HOMs) to lead standardised
language work stream.

Place of birth Choice leaflet to be
agreed across LMS area by
Providers, LMS Programme Board
and MSLC.

To reformat Maternity
transformation plan into easy to
read format

Project Midwife lead
August 2018

LHE Communication and
Engagement Group lead
Draft by July 2018

LMS project midwife and
Communications team
July 2018

1
11
o
QD
«Q
@D
\l
[E
1.2

Provide welcoming, consistent,
unbiased, informed, timely
information to women and their
partners regarding their maternity
care

Standardised information for
women tailored to individual
clinical areas available within each
Trust but not in a central location
for LMS.

Project lead to procure webpage
for LMS.

To consider facility for booking
care and appointments online
across LMS.

Draw on findings from local Place
of Birth user survey to ensure
women and their partners are
consistently informed about the

Project midwife to lead
with support of LHE
Communication and
Engagement

Welcome pack to be
drafted by HOM and LHE
Communication and
Engagement group by
May 2018

43




2/ abed

risks and benefits of all birth
options in a way that is
meaningful to them.

Review and where appropriate
redesign provision of choice
across LMS to include choice of
place of birth to provide options
for all women to include home,
midwifery unit or in hospital
obstetric unit.

Development of education
programme to support choices

Reconfiguration project
team
May 2019

1.3

Align to public health strategies and
be mutually supportive

Variations in public health
strategies that support maternity
and neonatal services.

Redesign project group to map
variation across LMS.

Baby steps evaluations to be
shared across LMS.

Convene a Public Health joint
working group ( cross authority
and providers to consider
alignment of public health
initiatives that impact on
Maternity services across LMS
area to avoid inconsistencies in
care provision

Redesign project group
August 2018.
Public Health leads

Public Health Joint
working Group (Cross -
authority and providers)
to be convened by July
2018. Lead Public Health
Director

44




¢/ abed

1.4 | To establish Maternity voice Established Maternity Services To establish maternity voice lo Project midwife and Public
partnerships Liaison Committee currently in partnerships. Health lead
place. A variety of methods used To identify any resource costs for [¢  Project midwife and Lead
in provider areas to obtain sustainability of maternity voice Commissioner for
feedback from women and partnerships and construct Maternity.
families including birth reflection required business case where
services, women surveys, appropriate
compliments and complaints,
“graffiti boards”.
2 Antenatal and Postnatal care
2.1 | Standardise antenatal and Most pathways similar but require LMS and Safeguarding Specialist o Safeguarding specialist
postnatal pathways for all women, | review to identify inconsistencies Midwives to agree Cross boundary midwives to lead linking
ensuring timely access to the across LMS policy about how vulnerable with 6.6
support or help needed. women will be identified and June 2018
alerted across LMS area.
Consider central Safeguarding
email address.
Review antenatal and post-natal [ Redesign Project Group
care pathways across LMS. October 2018
Review and align protocols e By Nov 2018
relating to transfer of antenatal
women to optimise birth before
27 weeks at appropriate site for
neonatal intensive care
2.2 | Consider adopting elements of the No current mapping of provision Redesign project group to review [@ Redesign Project group

Stepping up to Public Health (PH)
resources to empower women and

of Stepping up to PH resources.

evidence and identify pilot sites
for agreed elements of Stepping

June 2018

45




v/ abed

to enable staff to personalise
maternal public health

Women do not routinely
complete their own notes.

Women not routinely asked to
identify “what is important to you
or what do you want to know
about or ask”.

up to PH resources.

Redesign project group to
formulate proposal and present at
MSLC.

Sept 2018

2.3 | Infant feeding leads and There are specialist infant feeding Infant feeding leads currently e Maternity and Health
breastfeeding strategy leads to leads in all maternity and health meet quarterly and are becoming Visiting Services Infant
work together to contribute to Joint | visiting services as well as more aligned due to the SWSCN Feeding Leads
Strategy Needs Assessments commissioning leads in each CCG. work. Sept 2018
(JSNAs) and ensure consistency of But there are differences in breast Ensure governance of BFI
provision and messages across LMS | feeding policies which need to accreditation is linked to Early

become more aligned. Help Boards as well as contract
Although all _ management of services.
though all services are
& ) . o Work together across STP to
Breastfeeding Friendly Initiative , .
. . ensure consistency in data
(BFI) accredited, women can still . .
o ) collection and recording.
receive inconsistent messages .
. . GPs and Paediatricians also need
from different professionals, ] .
. . . to provide consistent messages -
including neonatal feeding .
. Health visitors best placed to
guidance. .
influence.
2.4 | Standardise transitional care There is variation between and Acute trusts evaluating pilots. ® Provider leads (one for

pathways across the LMS, with a
focus on keeping mothers and
babies together, smooth transitions
and effective communication
between services at all times and

across maternity services in how
care is provided to new babies
who need additional monitoring
and/or interventions.

All units to participate in the
ATAIN programme to keep
mothers and babies together.
Commissioners raising payment
issues around transitional care at

each Trust)
November 2018

46




G/ abed

appropriate on-going care in the
community

Acute Trusts are working
collaboratively towards a
transitional care model

Communication between
maternity, Paediatrics,
SCBU/NICU, GPs and health
visitors, infant feeding specialists
is not always consistent.

regional and national levels.
Need to develop and adopt a
procedural pathway to ensure all
relevant communication
(including finance) and discharge
summaries are completed in a
timely manner.

2.5 | Adopt a consistent approach to Each maternity provider offers The services will expand to offer |®  Reflection service leads
routinely offering all women and the opportunity for mothers to each woman the opportunity to and IAPT lead
families the opportunity to reflect reflect on their birth experience talk about the birth — not just Sept 2018
on their birth experience, with a midwife and/or those with a negative experience.
particularly in the early postnatal obstetrician. Nevertheless, the Pathways to be formalised
period (link to 5.4) opportunity is not currently between IAPT and maternity

promoted/ provided routinely. services to ensure women are
receiving the right support at the
right time.

2.6 | To ensure women and their Delivery of antenatal education Review and collate current e  MSLCto lead
partners are empowered and and transition to parenthood provision in each area including Sept 2018

confident making the transition to
parenthood and preparing for any
subsequent pregnancies, actively
promote preparation for
parenthood and support positive
parenting throughout the maternal
care pathway (MSLC priority).

varies across the LMS (health
visiting and maternity services)
both in terms of content and
reach. This applies to both
universal provision and targeted

programmes, such as Baby Steps.

Access to self-funded and

support for parents who have very
premature babies.

Review learning outcomes/ take
up (including fathers/ partners)
and evaluate user feedback.
Continue to align midwifery and
health visitor universal antenatal
education offering and ensure

47




9/ abed

voluntary sector provision is also
varied.

IAPT group based programmes
are also inconsistently provided
across the area.

sessions are accessible to and
meet the needs of those
vulnerable families who need
them most.

Raise awareness of other
providers for those who can self-
fund.

Consider business proposal for
Baby Steps in B&NES.

Perinatal and infant mental health

3.1

Implement local PIMH plans and
ensure synergies across LMS where
appropriate (links to MSLC priority
1.3)

There are many similarities in the
pathways in each area, e.g. a well-
being plan is given at all bookings,
but also variations e.g. the
midwives screening tool
questions vary. There are named
MH support MWs at each acute
hospital but they are not MH
specialists. The adult MH
provider (AWP) is the same across
the STP but, there are local
variations in referrals to, and
provision from, Improving Access
to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
and Primary Care Liaison Services
(PCLS).

There is a lack of specialist

To develop an STP approach to
PIMH

To develop and launch one PIMH
strategy across the STP area.

An STP bid for 2018/19 ‘pump
priming’ for a new specialist
community PIMH service is being
prepared ready for submission to
NHS England in late 2017.

May 2018

PIMH project manager to
lead
August 2018

48




/] abed

community perinatal MH services
across the STP.

Workforce transformation

4.1

Ensure our workforce is designed to
meet the offer of maternity care
and the aims of the needs of the
MTP.

Providers have carried out some
workforce planning. Awaiting
more details from national tools
from HEE and RCM.

Identify and work with workforce
modelling experts to progress via
HEE local team.

To establish a baseline for
Maternity workforce across the
LMS

To map workforce required
against Maternity offer to identify
workforce requirements using
Maternity Transformation plan
(HEE) when available. To ensure
Workforce planning to meet
demand and manage turnover
and retention; ensuring sufficient
flexibility, capacity and capability
in the service.

To map workforce requirements
for community hub model

Provider divisional
director leads and project
midwife

April 2018

July 2018

Oct 2018

49




8/ abed

Implementation of professional
midwifery advocates roles
(underpinning
feedback/learning cycle).
Influencing cultural change to
enhance flexibility and reach of
the workforce in relation to
health economy approach to
care in ensuring a women
focused ethos and culture of co-
production.

Identifying and supporting
Maternity Services Champions.
Identify any additional
midwifery resources required to
provide safe, continuity of carer
models of care.

Identify backfill time required
for Obstetric leads for project
time.

4.2

Ensure we have a workforce that is
equipped and enabled to take
forward the transformation agenda
through a QI methodology e.g.
PDSA

As above

Develop HR processes to support
cross boundary working

Learn from national initiatives
(project midwife)

Agree Ql methodology

Agree approach i.e. listening into
action

Plan training and release of staff

LMS Programme Board
and AHSN support

November 2018

50




6/ abed

e Develop clear outcome measures

Standardisation of Maternity
Support worker role

Differences in training and job
roles of Maternity Support worker
across the LMS area

e To map the current training and
competency standards for
Maternity support workers across
the Providers in the LMS.

e To work collaboratively with HEI's
and HEE using available
information from RCM to identify
an LMS agreed training, role
description and competencies
across the LMS.

[ Project midwife (in
conjunction with LMS
programme board Dec
2018

e |dentify
5 Continuity of carer
5.1 | Define what continuity of carer is Not currently in place but each Ambition to be designed at workshop |Lead midwife
for our LMS provider is mapping opportunities
to provide continuity January 2018
ACTIONED
5.2 | Draw on lessons learnt from early The providers within the LMS are | PDSA pilots to be created to explore  [Lead and project midwife
adopter sites to model continuity of | evaluating schemes that have options for continuity of carer delivery
carer locally most relevance to their June 2018
. Obstetric teams to review continuity
demographic
5.3 | Link with workforce transformation | This will be mapped, evaluated Full workforce workforce review Lead and project midwife

work stream to develop model for
achieving continuity of carer

and actioned through the LMS

following evaluation of Q1 project in
each provider area with the focus on

51




08 abed

through the maternity journey in
response to women’s local needs

Programme Board

provision of continuity of carer
antenatally and postnatally initially
progressing to intrapartum care
following the pilot evaluation.

To develop a transformational
workforce model that has the
potential to meet the aims of :

1.20% of women booked on a
continuity of carer pathway by March
2019

2.4 40% of women booked on a
continuity of carer pathway by March
2021

Review on call arrangements

August 2018

HOMS

6 Working across boundaries / multi-
agency working
6.1 | Standardise maternity notes across | RUH and GWH use same notes. e HOM Salisbury to discuss with e  HOM SFT lead

LMS including personalised care
plans

SFT have different notes.

Aim for all areas to use the same
notes.

Clinical Governance and agree
standardised records.

e To obtain and implement revised
notes for Salisbury (until such time
as digital records can be shared
across LMS (or nationally).

July 2018

52




Tg abed

lo

6.2 | Identify common digital platform No common digital platform- Project lead to co-ordinate Project Midwife lead
for professionals and women, o support from national digital team August 2018
- E M i i
partners and families ach Maternity Service uses a Learn from other areas that may
different electronic records .
_ have already progressed this
system which do not .
. action.
communicate.
Undertake Digital Maternity
No one source of information for Assessment to provide
service users information to National digital
workstream
Work to identify a digital platform
to promote a wide range of
positive birth stories to expectant
parents and the wider community
6.3 | Implement LMS triage system No standard triage system at Working group led by Project lead | Project midwife to lead
present. to be set up by December 2018. December 2018
) Share Wessex Unscheduled care
Background work being .
o pathways to use as basis for
undertaken by midwifery . .
) discussion of protocols.
representative from each Acute .
Trust Working group to evaluate
rust.
potential use of SW Hub as LMS
Expressions of interest submitted triage for all LMS Providers of
to SW Hub project. Maternity Care with standardised
triage tools.
6.4 | Standardise birth reflections and All areas provide Birth reflections Each Provider to identify VBAC [¢ Project Midwife

VBAC (Vaginal Birth after
Caesarean) services across the STP
and feedback key themes or
learning into the Safety subgroup

services. No current sharing of
trend analysis from Birth
reflections across LMS.

VBAC support services require

/positive birth champions
(Midwife and Obstetrician).

To set up quarterly meeting for
champions for positive birth

May 2018

53




28 abed

(links to 2.5)

mapping for each provider

reflections and VBAC services.
Map Positive Birth reflections
services for LMS by Project lead.
Map VBAC services across LMS by
project lead.

Development of educational DVD
for women

Swindon CCG
Commissioning Lead
July 2018

6.5

Ensure consistent public health
messaging, use of online resources
and signposting for information
across LMS

Local currently — with variation

Public health to be an agenda
item at LMS Programme Board —
link to national programme.
Consultation with service users re
needs / approach.

Review BANES Early Help App —
consider adopting this across LMS
with local information.

Flu jabs first messages required.
Project plan campaigns with a
timeline including identification of
resources available / media type.

MSLC

Dec 2018

6.6

Invite appropriate early years( 0-5
year) partners to discharge
planning meetings and formalise
MW-CC link role

Obstetricians not fully aware

Each Trust to identify lead liaison
role.

Identify Children’s centre
contacts.

Raise awareness of CC services
across wider maternity services &
locally.

Identify what meetings they are

LMS public health lead

August 2018

54




£g abed

required to attend - all/ selected
by invitation?
To be in place by February 2018.

6.7 | Establish mechanisms to enable Not in place —required to aid Dialogue with university training | Project midwife
midwives to work across recruitment & staffing shortfalls schools of nursing required.
organisational boundaries and spread shared practices Consider rotational posts. June 2018

Consult existing staff in each Trust
to seek expressions of interest /
suggestions on way forward.
Share learning from new LMS /
SWAST Midwife role — set up
(October 2017) and
implementation/practice
(2017/18).

6.8 | Develop a collective vision for Not in place Share learning from Swindon e Lead and project midwife
community hubs across services Accountable Care model to be via LMS Programme Board
involved in the maternal care implemented 2018/19 (Team
pathway to ensure families across Swindon) model). June 2018
the STP receive a service that is as Identify what services are
seamless required in the hub to support

maternity services?
Identify the expected benefits of
community hub & outcome
success measures?
6.9 | Ensure Early Help /Early Each CCG / Local Authority area To review strategic early years e LMS public health lead

Intervention strategies are linked to
ensure a whole system approach
across the STP.

has different arrangements for
delivering the early years agenda
and varying degrees of sign up

arrangements and working
processes across the STP.

Sept 2018

55




g8 abed

from agencies.

Safer Care

Current Position

Next Steps

7.1

Deliver against Maternal and
Neonatal Health Safety
Collaborative priorities.

Great Western Hospital is in Wave
2 and Salisbury and Royal United
Bath are in Wave 3 of the
Maternal and Neonatal Health
Safety Collaborative, a three year
programme to support
improvement in the quality and
safety of maternity and neonatal
units across England.

Each organisation will receive a
wide-ranging support over the life
of the programme. This includes
tailored resources and networks;
in the meantime learning from
Wave 1 organisations will take
place via clinical networks and will
feed into the newly formed
Maternity Safety Sub Group.

A combined Safety Improvement
Plan will be developed across the
LMS which will set the priorities
and framework within which the
Maternal Safety Sub Group will
work.

HOMs/ quality lead
April 2018-

7.2

In conjunction with the South West
Clinical Network develop a joint
safety improvement plan across the
LMS

Individual Trusts have
benchmarked against Better
Births and have locally agreed
priorities for Maternity Safety
Improvement Plan (MSIP).

Collaborate across the LMS to
develop joint MSIP.

Introduce external peer review for
SI’s.

Standardise approach to Sl
investigation using RCA and
Human Factors approach.

Ensure consistency in reporting
trigger framework.

HOMs/ Quality lead

May 2018- revised to June

2018

56




Gg abed

7.3

Review implementation of
maternity based clinics to increase
uptake of vaccination in pregnancy
(MSLC priority)

Each Trust in LMS has developed
its own local plan for delivering
vaccination in pregnancy.

Maternity Safety Sub Group will
focus on safe systems and
processes across the LMS which
will include sharing ideas for
implementing public health
initiatives such as delivery
vaccination clinics and any
barriers or difficulties
experienced.

Review 2016/17 data and update
at maternity forum on uptake of
vaccinations rates to date and
agree strategies to promote
including supporting across LMS.
Agreed and in place for 17/18.

-

HOMs

ACTIONED for 17/18
MSLC discussion April
2018 to confirm plans for
18/19

7.4

Benchmarking against national
audits such as MBRRACE, NPEU,
NMPA and EBC and sustain
implementation of
recommendations such as
implementation the Stillbirth Care
(MSLC priority)

Each Trust within LMS has
implemented the Stillbirth Care
Bundle and monitors incidence of
stillbirth on a monthly basis:

% of women identified as smokers
at booking referred to a specialist
stop smoking service

Proportion of women having a CO
test at booking

Number of unexpected SGA
babies born

Monitor and maintain through the
Maternity Safety Sub Group a
reduction in stillbirths and share
good practice across the LMS.
Benchmark that there is
consistency across the LMS of
monitoring and reporting of
Stillbirth interventions and
outcome measures.

Prescribe, monitor and maintain
safe clinical systems and
processes across the LMS to
ensure women who meet the

HOMs/ Quality lead
June 2018

57




9g abed

% of intrapartum CTG
interpretations reviewed by a
midwife / doctor hourly during
labour

No. of still births (>=24 weeks)

criteria for a more intense level of
care are identified early and a
personalised care plan is
developed in partnership with
them.

7.5

Monitor the impact of programmes
to improve health in pregnancy,
share learning and identify gaps in
provision (MSLC priority)

Health in Pregnancy programmes
are available in some Trusts
(B&NES and Wiltshire) with
demographic data collected to
plan services and determine
efficacy.

Percentage of mothers recorded
as smoking at time of booking

Percentage of mothers recorded
as smoking at time of delivery

Percentage of women with BMI
30 to 34.9 at booking

Percentage of women with BMI
35 to 39.9 at booking

Percentage of women with BMI
40 to 49.9 at booking

Percentage of women with BMI
50+ at booking

Need to identify current position,
some Trusts are able to offer
focused health improvement
programmes as a result of
commissioning priorities.
Identify targeted interventions
and any training required for
professionals to optimise
discussions with mothers
regarding smoking using
motivational interviewing
techniques

Monitor compliance with Saving
Babies Lives element in each
provider Trust to increase smoke
free pregnancies.

HOMs/ Quality lead/ Lead
LMS public health

Via LMS programme Board
June 2018

Public Health leads,

practice development
midwives

LMS Safety subgroup

58




/8 abed

7.6

Improve understanding of the
definition and prevalence of
vulnerabilities in pregnancy across
the STP and work to improve
engagement and support for
vulnerable women and their
families (MSLC priority) links to 5.8

Baseline data is currently being
collected across the LMS for the
period 2016/17 and Q1 2017/18
which includes:

Vulnerabilities:

<20 years / substance misuse /
perinatal mental health /
homeless or housing issues /
domestic abuse / recent arrival as
a migrant / asylum seeker or
refugee / English as a second
language / concealed pregnancy

Method:

% of pregnant women with one of
the vulnerability factors listed
above (total of all pregnant
women as denominator) at
booking

% of pregnant women with 3 or
more of the above vulnerability
factors at booking

% of pregnant women at booking

Review the data to establish the
current picture across the LMS
and develop strategy in response.
Ensure consistent application of
vulnerability criteria across
maternity, health visitor and
Children’s Centre services which is
consistent with the LSCB
thresholds.

Review and update maternity and
health visitor liaison pathway as
part of LMS work.

Public health lead and
HOMs
June 2018

Sept 2018

59




8g abed

with the ‘toxic trio’ at booking
7.7 | Ensure commissioners and Not yet started e  Work with commissioners and [ LMS Programme Board
maternity services are responding provider business analysts to April 2018
to demographic changes among agree the data set to be collected
women of childbearing age and across the LMS to enable
considering the needs of particular personalised care is planned in
vulnerable groups, including Syrian response to demographic needs.
refugees, European migrants and
military families (MSLC priority)
7.8 | Ensure effective supervisory Each individual Trust has e Toscope whether thereisaneed [ Lead and project midwife
mechanisms are in place to support | developed a plan to support to provide cross boundary cover May 2018
midwives locally (MSLC priority) implementation of the AEQUIP across the LMS.
Professional Midwifery Advocate
role.
7.9 | Clinicians from each provider to Membership already established Joint membership will be in place p  HOMS and quality lead
actively participate in the Strategic across the LMS within clinical Ongoing
Clinical Network to drive networks and Maternity Safety Sub
continuous improvement Group.
7.10 | Work closely with neonatal network | Already established Joint membership will be in place [ HOMS and quality lead
to align strategies across the LMS within clinical Ongoing
networks and Maternity Safety Sub
Group.

60




7.4 Co-production of the Plan

A Maternity Transformation Plan (MTP) planning event was held in June 2017 for service users, leads
and staff from maternity and early years’ services to reflect on the Better Births report and identify
key areas for action locally. A small task and finish group came together afterwards to pull together
the ideas generated on the day and formulate a draft plan. A subsequent event was organised in
September 2017 to present the draft MTP to those who attended the June event to obtain
feedback. The opportunity was also taken to begin work on an area for action identified in June,
namely to change some of the language used during pregnancy and birth to become more user
friendly and create more positive perinatal experiences for women and their partners. A further
workshop was held in January 2018 to co-produce and finalise our mobilisation action plan, which
features in table 14.

7.5 MTP Co-ordination and implementation

Our LMS is developing a proposal to use assigned national ring-fenced funds to appoint a dedicated
Project lead midwife and obstetrician time to help deliver the actions assure progress and support
clinical engagement and ownership.

It is envisaged that each provider will identify leads for the key themes of the plan within their teams
who will liaise with each other and with the MTP Project Lead to ensure actions are implemented
effectively and equitably across the LMS where appropriate.

A detailed communication and engagement strategy will be developed as part of this plan. This will
build on the RUH Maternity redesign programme, which commenced in January 2017 prior to the
conception of the Local Maternity System. The communication and engagement strategy will be co-
designed with providers and stakeholders by mid-June 2018.

8 The role of service users and opportunities to provide feedback

There are a range of opportunities for women accessing maternity care and those supporting them
to feedback on their experience including social media, real-time feedback, ‘Friends and Family’, and
provider surveys.

Service users have been centrally involved in the local MSLC for several years, providing the user
perspective at meetings and taking forward discreet pieces of work, such as a birth environment
audit and more recently, developing a place of birth user survey to which over 800 service users
responded.

It is recognised there is more to be done to improve how services engage with women accessing
maternity care and those supporting them and how we as an LMS listen and respond appropriately.
Ideas for improvement include:

e collating service user feedback that providers and user representatives are gathering across the
LMS in a way that can inform service improvement

e pro-actively seeking feedback from a representative sample of service users, not just relying on
those who are confident at voicing their experiences

61
Page 89



e ensuring we are engaging with the wider community, especially partners and families including

those from harder to reach groups within our demographic

Plans are in place to work with current MSLC user representatives and others expressing an interest

to be involved in maternity service improvement to take forward this work. The development of a

Maternity Voices Partnership is being discussed to build on the good work to date engaging service

users.

Each provider and commissioner has a documented and advertised complaints process to support

woman, families and carers when things go wrong.

9 Risks

Table 15 details current identified risks. This will be expanded and the level of risk scored by the
MOS by the end of Nov 2017.

Table 15: Risks

Focus Risk Mitigations

Workforce Due to the staffing models Involvement of national team to
recommended by Better Births, there is | develop models of care that is
a risk that they cannot be fully deliverable and sustainable.
implemented without additional
investment.
Due to the shortage of skilled midwives, | Link with HEE work, STP workforce plan
there is a risk that insufficient staff can | etc. Share successful strategies
be recruited / retained to implement
the new models of care.
Due to proposed significant changesto | Ensure staff involvement and
working practices, there is a risk that engagement with Better Births
staff availability will decline. recommendations.

LMS and Due to the large number of agencies Regular maternity forum and MSLC

Accountable Care
organisational
development

involved, there is a risk that agreeing
shared goals and objectives will be
difficult and time consuming

meetings with attendance by
appropriate decision makers.

Due to operational /financial issues with
identifying host or new buildings, there
is a risk that Community Hubs cannot be
established

Primary focus is on shared care
approach during transition period to
National transformation of Health and
Social Care.

Service
Performance

Due to the proposed changes to
established models of care, there is a
risk of unintended consequences
resulting in deteriorating performance.

Use of robust Quality Improvement
methodology to inform change
strategies.

Continuous monitoring of outcomes
with benchmarking against SW and
national key performance indicators.

Service Users

Due to national developments there is a
risk that women will request personal
budgets for their maternity care and a
decision has been made by the LMS to
defer this offer.

The Maternity Transformation Plan will
clearly set out what women and their
families can expect.

Page 90

62




Finance Due to resources allocated full Business plan for resources required to
implementation of Saving Babies Lives achieve full compliance.
criteria at GWH may not be achieved.

Service Risk of delay due to assurance process Risk

reconfiguration

requirement of reconfiguration

Risk of damage to organisational
reputation if adverse media interest or
judicial review

Follow reconfiguration process fully.
NHSE assurance support.
Clinical Senate review

Regular updates for Local Governing,
Providers and STP Boards

10 Conclusion

This document sets out the initial strategy as co-created by the LMS and wider stakeholders. Itis
envisaged that it will inform the basis of improvements to our services for our women, babies and
families. It is recognised that it will evolve in line with national maternity transformation
developments.

References

South West Clinical Network Maternity Dashboard: http://maternitydashboard.swscn.org.uk/

PHE Public Health Pregnancy and Birth profile: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/child-

health/profile/child-health-pregnancy

Universal health visiting service: mandation review:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/universal-health-visiting-service-mandation-review

Wiltshire, Swindon and Bath and North East Somerset Stillbirth and Infant Mortality Report (2017)

63
Page 91



http://maternitydashboard.swscn.org.uk/
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/child-health/profile/child-health-pregnancy
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/child-health/profile/child-health-pregnancy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/universal-health-visiting-service-mandation-review

Appendix 1: Current membership of the core LMS (Maternity Forum and MSLC)

Acting Director of Acute Commissioning Wiltshire CCG
(Programme Director for Maternity STP)

STP/ LMS lead midwife SFT

STP / LMS lead public health representative Wiltshire Council
Project Midwife LMS

Lead Consultant RUH/SFT
Lead GP Banes CCG
Quality lead Wiltshire CCG
Finance lead Wiltshire CCG
Comms and engagement lead RUH/ WCCG
Project manager (service reconfiguration) RUH
Associate Director for Quality Wiltshire CCG
Commissioning lead B&NES CCG
Commissioning lead Swindon CCG

Consultant Obstetrician and Gynaecologist

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Community and Acute Matrons

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Head of Nursing and Midwifery, Women &
Children’s Division

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Women and Children’s Divisional Manager

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Acute and Community Midwifery representation

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Infant Feeding Specialist

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Senior Midwifery Matron

Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation
Trust,

Consultant Obstetrician

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Community Midwife

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

DAU Midwife (lead for Diabetes in DAU)

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Consultant Obstetrician and Gynaecologist

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Clinical Midwifery Manager

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Maternity Support Worker

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Consultant Paediatrician (special interest in
SCBU)

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Head of Midwifery

Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Head of Maternity and Neonatal Services

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Consultant obstetrician and gynaecologist (Head
of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Service.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Labour Ward Manager

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Community Midwifery Manager

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Safeguarding Midwife

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Antenatal Services Manager

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

64

Page 92




Infant Feeding Lead

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Midwife

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Midwife

Chippenham Birthing Centre

Head of Service, Health Visiting

Bath and North East Somerset Community
Health & Care Services

Family Nursing Partnership

Bath and North East Somerset Community
Health & Care Services

Infant Feeding Lead

Bath and North East Somerset Community
Health & Care Services

GP Wiltshire CCG
Quality Manager Wiltshire CCG
Quality Manager Swindon CCG
Principal Officer — Health & Wellbeing Swindon Council
Public Health Commissioning & Development B&NES Council
Manager, Children and Young People

CAMHS and Maternity Commissioning Project B&NES CCG

Manager

Lead Commissioner

Wiltshire Council

Acting Director of Public Health

Wiltshire Council

Assistant Director for Children and Young
People’s Service

Wiltshire Council

Head of Service (Conception to 5 years)

Wiltshire Council

Screening & Immunisation Coordinator

NHS England

Patient Safety Programme Director

West of England Academic Health Science
Network

South West Maternity and Children’s Clinical NHS England
Network Manager

Quality improvement Lead, South West Clinical NHS England
Network

NCT Antenatal Teacher and NCT Doula NCT

Service User Representatives

Health watch representative

Children Centre Representatives

B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire Children Centre’s
Services

Health Visiting Team Leaders

B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire Health Visiting
Services

65

Page 93




NHS

Wiltshire

Clinical Commissioning Group

NHS

Royal United Hospitals Bath

NHS Foundation Trust

Wiltshire Council

~———————=_ Where everybody matters

R

virgin

NHS

Bath and

North East Somerset
Clinical Commissioning Group

NHS

Great Western Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust

&Y Swinpon

J M BOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 94

(A~

Maternity Strategy
& Liaison Committee

Rath

Swindon
Clinical Commissioning Group

NHS

Salisbury

NHS Foundation Trust

Bath & North East
Somerset Council




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SELECT COMMITTEE

This Forward Plan lists all the items coming to the Panel over the next few months.

Inevitably, some of the published information may change; Government guidance recognises that the plan is a best
assessment, at the time of publication, of anticipated decision making. The online Forward Plan is updated regularly and

-£an be seen on the Council’s website at:
&)
Q

®
“http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1

The Forward Plan demonstrates the Council’'s commitment to openness and participation in decision making. It assists the

Panel in planning their input to policy formulation and development, and in reviewing the work of the Cabinet.

Should you wish to make representations, please contact the report author or, Democratic Services (01225 394458). A

formal agenda will be issued 5 clear working days before the meeting.

Agenda papers can be inspected on the Council’s website and at the Guildhall (Bath), Hollies (Midsomer Norton), Civic

Centre (Keynsham) and at Bath Central, and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

GT wa}| epualby


http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1

I?aetfe Ii;la:lizir‘l)sn Title Repg(n;tngl;:hor Director Lead
18TH JULY 2018

18 Jul 2018 HWSC

Council / CCG Integration Dr Ians(a;r;(lagr, Jane Dirgggg;géiﬁ};agted
Tel: 01225 396120

18 Jul 2018 HWSC Kirsty Matthews,
Virgin Care Community Services - One Year On Virgin Care

18 Jul 2018 HWSC

Maternity Transformation Update

Deborah Forward
Tel: 01225 395305

Director of Integrated
Commissioning

264H SEPTEMBER 2018

@26 Sep 2018 HWSC Catherine Phillips,
=3 Community Eye Care Services (Ophthalmology) CccG Tracey Cox
ITEMS YET TO BE SCHEDULED
HWSC
Local Care Home Staff Provision Vincent Edwards Dlrgcc:)trc:]rrrcl)s‘sg:éen?rr]ated
Tel: 01225 477289 9
HWSC
Update on the Transfer of Services from the RNHRD to Emma Mooney Tracey Cox
the RUH (Pain Services) Tel: 01225 825849
HWSC
Integrated Urgent Care Procurement Catherine Phillips Tracey Cox

Tel: 01225 831868




Ref Decision . Report Author .
Date Maker/s e Contact DAL LEEE
HWSC
Dentistry Services Ruth Bartram
Tel: 01138 251522
HWSC
Non-Emergency Patient Transport Service Tracey Cox
HWSC
NHS 111 update Tracey Cox
HWSC
- Loneliness Director qf Iqtegrated
2 Commissioning
D
S HWSC

Homecare Review

Director of Integrated
Commissioning

The Forward Plan is administered by DEMOCRATIC SERVICES: Mark Durnford 01225 394458 Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	7 MINUTES - 23rd May 2018
	14 Maternity Transformation Update
	Appdx1
	Appdx2

	15 Select Committee Workplan

